
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Date Not Specified. 
 01476 406080

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Tuesday, 16 July 2019 at 10.30 am
Newton Room - Guildhall Arts Centre, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ

Committee 
Members:

Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman)
Councillor Mark Whittington (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Bob Adams, Councillor David Bellamy, Councillor Phil Dilks, Councillor Philip 
Knowles, Councillor Annie Mason, Councillor Charmaine Morgan and Councillor Linda 
Wootten

Invited 
Cabinet 

Members

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy Leader of the Council
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance

Agenda
1.  Comments from members of the public

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion.

2.  Membership
The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

3.  Apologies

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


4.  Disclosure of interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

5.  Action notes of the meetings held on 4 June and 14 June 2019 (Pages 3 - 17)

6.  Updates from previous meetings
 Statement of Common Ground, Land at Stamford North – Cabinet decision

 Advertising and sponsorship initiative – update from Chairman and Vice-
Chairman

7.  2018/19 outturn
Report from the Cabinet Member for Finance.

(Pages 19 - 48)

8.  Performance Reporting
Report from The Deputy Leader of the Council. 

(Pages 49 - 58)

9.  Funding Update
Report from the Cabinet Member for Finance.

(Pages 59 - 64)

10.  Contract tendering process review
Members to be given a verbal update.

11.  Remit of the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

12.  Work programme
Members to review the Committee’s work programme for 2019/20.

(Pages 65 - 66)

13.  Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent



Meeting of the
Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Tuesday, 4 June 2019, 10.30 am

Committee Members present

Councillor Bob Adams
Councillor David Bellamy
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman)
Councillor Philip Knowles

Councillor Annie Mason
Councillor Charmaine Morgan
Councillor Susan Sandall
Councillor Mark Whittington (Vice-
Chairman)
Councillor Paul Wood

Cabinet Members

Councillor Helen Goral, Cabinet Member for Growth
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Planning
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance

Officers Other Members present

Strategic Director, Resources (Debbie 
Muddimer)
Strategic Director, Growth (Paul Thomas)
Assistant Chief Executive (Housing 
Delivery (Ken Lyon)
Head of Planning Policy (Roger Ranson)
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

Councillor Paul Wood

The Chairman welcomed members to the meeting. He set out the way he 
would like to see the Committee operate to ensure that it used its time as 
effectively as possible, including prior notice where a Member had a number 
of questions on an individual item, including, where possible, the submission 
of those questions. He also indicated that if members wished to place an item 
on the Committee’s work programme between meetings, they should forward 
that item to the Chairman and Vice-Chairman for consideration. 

3

Agenda Item 5



Questions were put about the remit of the Committee. Members were advised 
that the new Committee had inherited the remit of the former Growth Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee, together with a series of additions. The remit of the 
Committee was being prepared in conjunction with the review of the Council’s 
Constitution, which was underway. Any specific areas that members of the 
Committee would like included could be articulated during the meeting and fed 
into the Constitution review. 

1. Disclosure of Interests

No interests were disclosed.

2. Proposed development at Stamford North - Statement of Common 
Ground

The Committee was provided with the context of the report of the Cabinet 
Member for Planning on the Statement of Common Ground for the proposed 
development at Stamford North. The report had arisen out of SKDC’s Local 
Plan, which was approved by Council in May 2018 and had been submitted to 
the Secretary of State and subject to examination in public. As part of this 
process the Council had to evidence how it worked with neighbouring 
authorities under the duty to co-operate.

The Local Plan included a significant allocation to the north of Stamford, which 
extended beyond the district boundary into Rutland. At the current time, both 
authorities had brought forward separate allocations, but the aim was to make 
sure that this was more co-ordinated in the future. The Statement of Common 
Ground set out the principles of how the relevant local authorities (South 
Kesteven District Council, Rutland County Council and Lincolnshire County 
Council) would work together. The Statement of Common Ground would be 
considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 11 June 2019, with a view to its 
adoption.

Through questions, members established that this document was the first part 
of a three-stage process in developing the site. The Statement of Common 
Ground set out how the local planning authorities and highways authorities 
would work with one another to progress the development. 

Members asked whether it would be appropriate to include Stamford Town 
Council in the Statement of Common Ground as they were considered to be a 
key stakeholder. It was also noted that Stamford Town Council was producing 
its own Neighbourhood Plan, which several Members suggested should be 
central to the development. Councillors were advised that engagement with 
Stamford Town Council would take place during the second phase, which was 
the formation of a development brief for the site; this would ultimately become 
supplementary planning guidance. The development brief would set out wider 
considerations, including phasing, provision of infrastructure and the location 

4



of key facilities. This approach was in compliance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework, which stated that strategic issues should not be considered 
in isolation. 

The third part of the process was the submission and determination of 
planning applications. Applications would come forward in line with the 
development brief and go through the normal committee process for the 
respective local planning authority. One member suggested that it might be 
appropriate for the Statement of Common Ground to be considered by the 
Planning Committee but it was noted that the document was an executive 
decision on how the authorities worked together rather than an arrangement 
that affected the determination of planning applications. 

Members were interested in how the proposed phasing of the development 
might work and how this could be affected by the interests of different 
landowners. The development would cover land in three different ownerships; 
a legal agreement would be established between the three landowners to 
ensure that the development could step across the whole site. A 
memorandum of understanding would also be drawn up between the 
developers who would bring the development forward to ensure that it was co-
ordinated in terms of design, layout and infrastructure. Members were also 
reassured that there were no known member or officer interests in any of the 
parcels of land and that the ownership of land did not run across local 
authority area boundaries.

Members were advised that the Local Plan process included the submission 
of an infrastructure delivery plan that looked at the overall impact of 
allocations to make sure there was sufficient infrastructure provision to 
accommodate the planned growth. Questions were asked about health 
provision for residents living within the new development. Detailed 
conversations had been held with the relevant clinical commissioning group, 
health providers and Lincolnshire County Council. The approach that had 
been adopted was that the site’s residents should make best use of existing 
facilities with the only direct provision being a pharmacy.

The area within South Kesteven had capacity for an allocation of 1350, while 
the Quarry Farm part of the site, which was in Rutland, had capacity for 650. 
Members were interested in how the part of the development in Rutland would 
count towards meeting South Kesteven’s housing need. This was being tested 
as part of the inspection of the Local Plan. Members asked questions to 
address concerns about what would happen if that did not stand up or Rutland 
withdrew the commitment. The land was currently allocated within the Rutland 
Local Plan, in which it identified the housing allocation would contribute to 
South Kesteven’s housing need rather than Rutland’s. If this was rescinded or 
the inspection of the South Kesteven Local Plan allocated the dwellings to 
Rutland, members were reassured that there would not be a need for South 
Kesteven to identify and allocate additional land for housing as sufficient 
additional provision had already been built into the Plan. Members were 

5



interested in why Rutland might agree to allow the allocation to count towards 
South Kesteven’s numbers. It was noted that the development would bring 
wider benefits to Rutland and this would be for Rutland County Council to 
determine. 

Members asked whether the capacity of the site had been compared to the 
existing density of development in Stamford. Officers explained that a set 
methodology had been used to calculate the capacity of the land, which was 
indicative. The target number of dwellings would be established as part of the 
Masterplanning phase.

Debate ensued on governance arrangements and responsibility for risk 
management. Some concern was expressed about the potential impact of 
spreading risk management across multiple authorities whether it could mean 
that risk would not be managed effectively. The development would have a 
sponsor board with a project board sitting beneath it. It was also highlighted 
that the project lead worked across both South Kesteven District Council and 
Rutland County Council, which meant that there was oversight for both 
bodies. Opportunities for scrutiny would sit with the individual councils. Any 
concerns raised in respect of risk would be reported to the most appropriate 
body and fed back to the relevant part of each Council; this could be the 
Cabinet with the opportunity for scrutiny from the relevant committees or, if 
appropriate, the planning committee. 

Committee members noted that the draft Statement of Common Ground did 
not include appendix C, containing financial information and details of how 
costs and expenses would be shared. Members were advised that costs for 
the management and servicing of the boards would be met from within 
existing budgets. Some additional costs would be incurred in respect of 
consultation on the development brief.

Action Point

Appendix C of the Statement of Common Ground to be circulated 

Members sought reassurance that best practice had been incorporated into 
the draft document. Consultants had been commissioned to produce the 
Statement of Common Ground to ensure that it was independent. One of the 
first pieces of work that was undertaken as part of its preparation was 
research into identifying good practice from similar agreements between other 
local authorities. A background paper had been produced setting out those 
relevant examples, which influenced the content of the document. Members 
felt it would be helpful if that background paper could be made available to 
Cabinet to assist its considerations.

6



Action Point

The background paper identifying good practice in the preparation of 
Statements of Common Ground to be shared with Cabinet Members

A question was asked about the arbitration of disputes. Members were 
advised that if these related to the order in which the sites were developed, 
this would be defined by documents including a full Transport Assessment 
and set out in the Development Brief. 

Members were interested in whether the Statement of Common Ground could 
be subject of judicial review; they were advised that the document was an 
agreement between the three authorities to work together and could not be 
tested in courts.

Questions were also put to officers in relation to the co-ordination of 
communications in relation to this site. Whilst the content of communications 
would be co-ordinated, each constituent council would be responsible for its 
own communications, including issuing joint releases, press releases and 
public consultation on the Development Brief.

The Statement of Common Ground would need to be adopted by each of the 
constituent councils. It was anticipated that it would be presented to Rutland’s 
Cabinet in July 2019, and a delegated decision would be made by 
Lincolnshire County Council at a similar time. 

It was noted that SKDC and Rutland County Council used different 
mechanisms to secure developer contributions, as South Kesteven used 
Section 106 Agreements while Rutland used Community Infrastructure Levy. 
By establishing the governance set out in the statement, the partners would 
be able to consider the totality of the development, its impact on infrastructure 
and what could be best achieved through each mechanism. 

Without adopting the Statement of Common Ground there was a risk that the 
development would be brought forward in an uncoordinated way, which could 
affect delivery of necessary infrastructure and the overall phasing, build-out 
and delivery of the development.

Members were advised that work was underway on the preparation of the 
Development Brief. A full traffic assessment was still required but the brief had 
been subject to a design review panel. It was intended that the draft 
Development Brief would be brought to Cabinet in the autumn of 2019 for its 
approval for consultation.

Members AGREED:

The Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny recommended the adoption by Cabinet of the Statement of 

7



Common Ground for Land at Stamford North subject to the inclusion of 
Appendix C to the document and provision of the background report on 
best practice to support Cabinet Members in reaching their decision. 

3. Work Programme

Established standing items for the committee were budget and performance 
monitoring. Members suggested additional items that they would like included 
on the Committee’s work programme:

 2018/19 – budget outturn and quarter 4 performance (16 July 2019)
 2019/20 – quarter 1 performance and budget updates (additional 

meeting, date to be confirmed end July/early August)
 Remit of committee (16 July 2019)
 Economic Development Strategy; work to begin with a presentation 

from InvestSK
 Town centre review update (carried over from Growth Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee)
 Development infrastructure
 Outputs and returns arising from the Council’s companies
 Local Plan post-examination report (July 2019)
 Customer feedback process (autumn/winter 2019)
 Medium Term Financial Strategy
 Transformation, including IT and infrastructure
 Car parking
 Housing delivery 
 Engaging with the business community

Committee members felt that to ensure sufficient capacity, they would like to 
add additional meetings. The Chairman stated that in time for the next 
meeting a work programme, including additional meeting dates, would be 
produced and circulated to members.

4. Close of meeting

The meeting was closed at 12:07.

8



Meeting of the
Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Friday, 14 June 2019, 10.30 am

Committee Members present

Councillor Bob Adams
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman)
Councillor Philip Knowles

Councillor Annie Mason
Councillor Charmaine Morgan
Councillor Mark Whittington (Vice-
Chairman)
Councillor Linda Wootten

Cabinet Members

Councillor Adam Stokes, the Cabinet Member for Finance

Officers Other Members present

Strategic Director (Debbie Muddimer)
Assistant Director, Resources (Richard 
Wyles)
Organisational Development and Change 
Team Leader (Victoria Brackenbury)
Project Lead (Sam Fitt)
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Paul Wood

5. Membership

The Committee was notified that Councillor Linda Wootten would be 
substituting for Councillor Sandall for this meeting only.

6. Apologies

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Bellamy.

9



7. Disclosure of interests

No interests were disclosed.

Recording of meetings

Reference was made to an e-mail that had been received by some members of the 
Council that advised them of another Member’s intention to film the proceedings and 
distribute them to social media outlets and members of the public. Two members 
stated that they did not wish for their images to be posted on any form of social media.

The member who had given the notification referred to legislation, the Openness of 
Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, which introduced a rights to film, record 
and photograph public meetings of local authorities.

Officers stated that they would seek legal advice on whether it was possible for a 
Councillor to “opt out” of being filmed or photographed. Until legal advice had been 
provided any member wishing to film, photograph or record the meeting was asked to 
respect the wishes of those Councillors who had indicated that they did not wish to be 
filmed or their image shared on social media.

8. Cabinet Member Decision - 12 April 2019 - utilisation of the Invest to 
Save Reserve

The Chairman set out the procedure that would be followed and outlined the 
options that were available to the Committee after hearing the call-in request. 
He also thanked those Members who had submitted questions in advance of 
the meeting. A schedule of responses had been circulated and Members were 
advised that there would be a short adjournment to give them an opportunity 
to read the questions and answers.

Those Members who called-in the decision were invited to set out their 
reasons for doing so:

 They did not consider that the report included sufficient detail about any 
of the proposed projects

 Questions over why the three items were dealt with in a single decision 
rather than a separate decision for each theme

 Concerns about the status of Publitas, the organisation that had been 
identified to deliver the advertising and sponsorship initiative

Those Members who had called-in the decision said that they had approached 
officers for additional information before calling-in the decision but the 
information that had been provided had not sufficiently addressed their 
concerns.

10:51-10:57 – the meeting adjourned to allow Members the opportunity to 
read the pre-submitted questions and their answers

10



Members considered and debated each of the proposed projects in turn:

Financial Services Review

The Assistant Director, Resources gave an overview of the Financial Services 
Review. He explained that as part of the budget preparation process for 
2019/20 the Council was continuing its transformation programme, one 
element of which was service reviews. Financial Services was the first service 
to be fundamentally reviewed. The officers, working with the Cabinet Member, 
felt that peer support to deliver the review would be valuable and so secured 
external support on a fixed-term basis. 

During the review the consultant spent time with each member of the Financial 
Services Team to understand their skills, experience and how they were 
currently deployed. Following the review, an action plan had been drawn up to 
ensure the needs of the authority aligned with resources.

It was anticipated that the review would result in savings from the alignment of 
resources and identification of commercial opportunities to raise income. An 
example was given of how the Council could provide payroll services to other 
companies and organisations. Members asked about the demand for 
providing services to other companies and organisations, noting that the 
Council already provided services to SKDC’s companies. Using the payroll 
example, Members expressed some concern that organisations would have 
arrangements in place. Conversations had been undertaken with academies 
and contact would coincide with the expiration of their existing contracts.

Members asked about the objectives for the review and the outcomes that had 
been identified. One Councillor suggested that these should have been 
shared with Members. 

Discussion turned to potential risks associated with the review, which were not 
identified in the non-key decision report. Specific concern was expressed 
about the impact on staff involved in the review. Members were advised that 
staff members were fully engaged and informed, but it was not an appropriate 
time to specify how savings would be delivered. Members asked about the 
anticipated level of savings and when they could be expected.  Members were 
reminded that the 2019/20 Budget preparation had a savings target of £200k, 
which was underpinned by interventions including predictive analysis, 
automation and service reviews. Other services would also be subject to a 
similar review process to establish whether they were value for money and fit 
for purpose.

In addition to the identification of savings and opportunities for income 
generation, the review also included the development of a comprehensive 
action plan to help the team become more efficient and better support the 
wider organisation. Members suggested it would have been helpful if they had 

11



been advised of the review’s objectives so that they could form a judgement 
on whether those objectives had been met. 

Some Members expressed concern that the review had already been 
completed and asked about the impact should the committee uphold the call-
in request. Officers clarified that the decision was to determine whether the 
review should be funded from the Invest to Save Reserve. The principle of 
undertaking service reviews had already been agreed as part of the Council’s 
budget setting process. In the event that the call-in was upheld, the Cabinet 
Member for Finance would have to consider from where the project should be 
funded. If the Invest to Save Reserve was not considered an appropriate 
funding source, Members asked how the project would be funded. The 
Committee was advised that there was a vacant position within the 
establishment for the Financial Services Team and that this vacancy would be 
held until the saving had offset the cost of the review. 

Members were interested in how savings from the review would be reported to 
them. Questions were also raised about whether the review identified any 
shortfalls in the team’s skill base and whether the right level of resource was 
in place. It was expected that there would be changes to the way in which 
resources were deployed, which would be managed through the service 
review action plan. There was no intention to report savings directly however 
Invest to Save spending would be visible as part of budget-setting.

Members felt that they should have been informed at the start of the process 
with the intended outcomes clearly stated. It was noted that, had the proposal 
not been to fund the Financial Services Review through the Invest to Save 
Reserve, it would not have been brought to Members’ attention. Reference 
was made to historic requests for information on the detailed plans and 
objectives of the Council; rather than the high-level information with which 
they had been provided, Members suggested it would be more helpful if the 
detail had been shared with them. 

Committee Members raised questions about the origins of the Invest to Save 
Reserve. It had been created to accelerate funding for opportunities that arose 
in-year where a one-off injection of funding could lead to ongoing reductions in 
the revenue budget with a typical payback period of two years. Ordinarily the 
reserve was used for revenue costs but it was possible it could be used to 
fund one-off capital expenditure. The Invest to Save Reserve was 
discretionary; Council had approved a sum of £1m and a policy on how it 
should be accessed and used. Once funding for a project had been agreed, it 
moved to the revenue budget line. As part of its annual budget setting process 
Council would need to determine whether it wished to “top-up” the Reserve to 
£1m or whether its intention was for the funding to be drawn down until there 
was none left.

Members noted the value of the contract and clarified that the individual 
conducting the review had been appointed through an agency, rather than 

12



acting on her own behalf or as a company. Rather than the value of the 
contract, members were most concerned about the process that had been 
followed in setting objectives and how it was funded. 

The suggestion was made that there were other, more appropriate funding 
streams for the review than the Invest to Save Reserve. Members were 
advised that the service review focused resources on areas that needed to be 
modernised or that were traditionally high cost; the method of delivery for each 
review would depend on its complexity. The use of peer support was felt to be 
the most appropriate tool in this instance. 

Internet of Things

Members were given an overview of the ‘Internet of Things’ project. The 
Council was working on the project with a company called Digital Catapult, 
which helped local authorities use innovation and technology to deliver 
enhanced digital solutions. The project they were working on with SKDC was 
the development of intelligent street lights that incorporated sensors to capture 
additional information. Examples of the sorts of data that the Council was 
looking to collect included footfall, air pollution and noise pollution. Councils 
working with Digital Catapult would set out the problem for which wanted a 
solution. Digital Catapult would put that problem to a network work of Small to 
Medium Enterprises (SMEs) who would develop solutions. The Council would 
then choose whether it wanted to take forward any of the options. 

In the first instance, the savings identified in respect of the project related only 
to the replacement of existing streetlamps with energy efficient LED on the 
basis of a 7-year payback. It was hoped, however that a successful solution 
could generate further savings by reducing ad hoc staff time needed to repair 
faulty lamps or collect other types of data. Members were also interested in 
who would own the intellectual property behind any solution that was 
developed into a marketable product. Ownership of the rights would be shared 
between the Council and the developer. Specific work would need to be 
undertaken on this should any product proceed to market.

Members were interested in whether Lincolnshire County Council had been 
consulted. As the relationship was between South Kesteven District Council 
and Digital Catapult, there had been no discussion with Lincolnshire County 
Council. If any prototype proved successful, then there would be an 
opportunity to consider working with partners to rollout the product on a wider 
basis.

Members were advised that the sample size for the testing phase was 15 to 
20 lamps which would cover different environments, for example half the 
quota would be sited in a car park and half on a village street. Members 
commented that the sample size was small and asked how the Council could 
ensure that the data collected was meaningful. The locations of the Council’s 
street lamps would be shared with innovators for them to identify which lamps 

13



would provide the best sample. The sample would provide the Council with to 
evidence to determine whether the technology could be scaled up. One 
member suggested the car park at the Deeping Leisure Centre as a test site, 
particularly if the prototype had the ability to record footfall ahead of the 
development of any new leisure provision. Members also wondered whether 
there would be opportunities to gain additional data where streetlights were 
linked.

Questions were raised about how much funding had been committed to date 
(the £10,000 initial spend was for access to the innovators to come up with 
solutions). Members asked whether the Council was under a contractual 
obligation that committed it to the additional £20k.

The Committee asked about security measures that would be taken to protect 
the data that was collected through the sensors. Part of the remit of the project 
included ensuring that a secure network was used.

Officers confirmed that while Digital Catapult had worked with a range of 
different local authorities, none of the projects involved street lighting. Even 
though the innovators that worked with Digital Catapult had not worked on any 
street lighting projects, they had been involved in other projects through which 
sensors were deployed on different pieces of street furniture.

It was anticipated that the 3-month testing of any prototype device would 
begin in approximately 7 months. It was expected that data would be available 
very quickly.

Members suggested that it would have been beneficial if the report on which 
the decision was based had included the business plan and details about 
Digital Catapult. 

Advertising and sponsorship initiative

Members turned their attention to the element of the decision that related to 
the advertising and sponsorship initiative. Members were advised that the 
Council was already working with Publitas on the completion an audit of 
advertising income received by the Council and the potential extent of the 
opportunity within the local market. The audit report also highlighted 
opportunities to make better use of the Council’s assets to generate additional 
advertising income. The report was asking for a £40k funding to take forward 
this project.

A question had been raised about the status of the company and whether the 
Companies House registration number with which Members were provided 
was valid. Officers confirmed that Publitas LLP was no longer trading. It had 
instead been rolled into Incandore Ltd, which traded as Publitas Consulting.

14



Members asked about the due diligence that had been undertaken prior to the 
appointment of Publitas. Officers stated that a contract of that size would not 
require a review of the company’s accounts nor the detail of the company’s 
structure. Prior to working with Publitas Consultancy officers had taken 
telephone references from other local authorities with which they had worked 
with; these were followed up with written testimonials, which could be provided 
to members if required. Several members who spoke suggested that a greater 
level of due diligence should have been undertaken and reference was made 
to the level of checks carried out by one of the district’s town councils when 
making a small grant.

Members referred to the company’s balance sheet and related it to the size of 
the contract that had been placed by the Council. Some concern was 
expressed whether Publitas was sufficiently resources to fulfil the contract. 
The consensus amongst members was that as Publitas was acting in an 
advisory capacity only, it would be practical for a small number of people to 
deliver the contract.

Councillors asked to what the Council had already committed with Publitas. 
Publitas began the audit of sponsorship opportunities in October 2018; the 
Council had paid £10,000 for this work. There was no contract that committed 
the Council beyond this.

Committee members clarified that no interests had been disclosed by any 
member or officer in connection with either of the companies Publitas or 
Incandore. Reassurance was given that all officers were required under the 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and Code of Conduct to make their 
manager or relevant director aware if they were likely to be involved with any 
activity or company of which they had knowledge or a family connection.

Councillors asked whether there was an agreed code of practice that would 
control the types of advertisements the Council would allow; this had not yet 
been developed. The Council would remain in control of the sites and what 
was in scope, while Publitas would help with the procurement of specialist 
suppliers of advertising and sponsorship, implementation, management and 
sales 
The Committee asked which other Councils had commissioned Publitas to 
undertake this work. Members were advised that Publitas was just beginning 
this stage with Newport Council. Members were concerned that there may be 
a lack of experience in delivering this part of the programme and were only in 
the process of developing a full suite of OJEU-compliant procurement 
documents.

Officers were asked about market testing prior to the appointment to see how 
many other companies would be able to provide a similar service. Members of 
the Committee enquired whether other options had been considered, 
suggesting the amount due to be spent with Publitas would be sufficient to 
provide in-house expertise. Members also expressed concerns about the 

15



potential implications if there was an error made in respect of the OJEU 
procurement process. Officers provided reassurance that the due diligence 
carried out on Publitas ensured that the company had adequate professional 
indemnity and liability insurance.

Councillors asked whether it would be possible for other organisations to 
piggy-back the Council’s arrangement with Publitas, suggesting their services 
might be of interest to parish councils and schools, which all had a lot of space 
that could be available for advertising.

The Committee also sought reassurance that prior to any space being sold, 
there would be consultation with the relevant parish or town council. Members 
were advised that appropriate consultation would be undertaken where 
needed.

Conclusions, actions and recommendations

The Committee began to draw conclusions. Members agreed it would be 
helpful if reports requesting funding from the Invest to Save Reserve 
contained more information. They suggested that business cases should be 
provided, with any commercially sensitive information being presented on pink 
papers.

Recommendation

 Applications for funding from the Invest to Save Reserve should 
include as much information as possible, with commercially 
sensitive information supplied on pink papers where necessary

Members expressed concern that the matters had only been brought to the 
Committee’s attention because of the proposed funding mechanism; had the 
projects been funded from service budgets, Members would not be aware of 
the projects.

Action Point

 Operational processes around tendering to be added to the 
Committee’s work programme

The Committee agreed that they did not uphold the call-in of those parts of the 
decision that related to the Financial Services Review and the ‘internet of 
things’ programme. Greater concern was expressed about the advertising and 
sponsorship project. It was suggested that Members could accept the decision 
subject to the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Committee carrying out 
further exploratory work. If they were satisfied, the Committee was happy to 
uphold the original decision. If there was anything about which the Chairman 
or Vice-Chairman was concerned, those matters should be reported to the 

16



Committee’s next scheduled meeting on 16 July 2019 with a view to it 
reconsidering its conclusions.

Conclusion

 To not uphold the call-in for those parts of the decision relating to 
the Financial Services Review and the ‘internet of things’ meaning 
they were both effective immediately

 Subject to no adverse feedback from the chairman or vice-
chairman on the sponsorship and advertising initiative, the 
Committee did not uphold the call-in. Should the Chairman or 
Vice-Chairman raise any concerns, they should be reported at the 
Committee’s next meeting on 16 July 2019 so that the Committee 
could re-consider its conclusion

Future meetings

The Committee noted that it was next scheduled to meet on 16 July 2019, when items 
included the outturn and performance information for 2018/19 and discussion on the 
Committee’s remit. 

Committee required an additional meeting to consider quarter 1 financial and 
performance reporting; it had been agreed that this would be held on Thursday 5 
September 2019 at 10:30am.

9. Close of meeting

The meeting was closed at 13:14.

17



This page is intentionally left blank



Finance, Economic Development 
and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee
16 July 2019

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes, 
Cabinet Member for Finance

        

Outturn Position Report 2018/19

This report provides the OSC with the detail of the Council’s outturn position for the financial year 
2018/19. The report covers the following areas:

• General Fund Revenue Budget (Section 4)
• Housing Revenue Account Budget (Section 5)
• Capital Programmes – General Fund and HRA (Section 6)

Report Author

Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance

 01476 406208

 Alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Gill Goddard – Senior Financial Accountant 1 July 2019

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Strategic Director of Finance 2 July 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 2 July 2019

Recommendations to the decision maker 

The OSC is asked to: 
1. Review the Revenue and Capital Outturn report and associated appendices for 

2018/19.
2. Note the budget carry forwards shown at paragraph 4.5 and reserve movements 

shown at section 7 in the report.

19

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


3. Note the Capital slippages from the 2018/19 Capital Programme as detailed in the 
report and appendix C & E.

4. Note the change to the Regeneration reserve policy to include financing any 
feasibility work costs in respect of property acquisition and development.

20



1 The Background to the Report
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Council’s Revenue and Capital 

Outturn 2018/19 of both the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account.  
It covers:

 Revenue outturn 2018/19
 Capital outturn 2018/19
 Commentary on the revenue and capital outturn
 Commentary and review of reserves and a reserves statement

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview 
and Scrutiny

2.1 During the year regular budget monitoring and management reports have 
been presented at the Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
members have considered and debated the variances during this period.  This 
outturn report is the culmination of the in-year reports.  The outturn report was 
presented to Governance and Audit Committee on 21 June 2019.  The 
Committee considered the report and approved:

- the Revenue and Capital Outturn report and associated appendices for 
2018/19.

- the budget carry forwards shown at paragraph 4.5 and reserve 
movements shown at section 7 in the report.

- the Capital slippages from the 2018/19 Capital Programme as detailed in 
the report and appendix C & E.

- the change to the Regeneration reserve policy to include financing any 
feasibility work costs up to £150k in each financial year in respect of 
property acquisition and development.

- the creation of a specific reserve of £100k to fund the crowd funding 
initiative from the year end working balance.  

The outturn report was presented to Cabinet on 9th July 2019.  The OSC will 
be updated with any comments arising from the meeting. 

3 General Fund Revenue Budget
3.1 The 2018/19 original general revenue budget approved by Council on 1 March 

2018 was set at £17.161m. Subsequent approved amendments to the budget 
framework have been included and these are summarised below. These 
changes increased the 2018/19 budget to £19.502m. For the purposes of the 
outturn variance analysis, the budget carry forwards have been removed from 
this which reduces the budget for comparative purposes to £18.798m.

21



3.2

Table 1

Date of Approval Revenue Budget amendment £’000
June 2018 2017/18 Budget Carry forward and set asides 694
July 2018 Environment SK 40
September 2018 Deliver SK 100
November 2018 One off costs arising from the Senior 

Management Restructure*
866

June 2018 Stamford Arts Centre Bequest 33

January 2019 Allocation of Business Rates Income 459
February 2019 Intelligent Automation project 150

*This is the one-off cost incurred following the implementation of the new senior management 
arrangements.  The full year saving of the new structure will be £300k for the General Fund 
and the payback period is 2 years and 10 months. 

3.3 This report provides details of the Council’s outturn position for the financial 
year 2018/19. In order to comply with International Financial Reporting 
Standards a number of technical accounting entries are required to be made 
which can create significant variances.  The report attempts to ensure that, 
through explanation and presentation, the final account figures can be 
reconciled back to the original budget set by Council.

3.4 General Fund Revenue Account 2018/19 details can be found at table 2 and 
the variance narrative is provided at section 4.4 and at Appendix A.

3.5 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) details can be found at table 7 and the 
variance narrative is provided at section 5.3 and at Appendix B.

3.6 General Fund Capital Programme has an outturn of £16.05m compared with 
an updated budget of £25.478m.  Details of the full programme and additional 
slippage are contained within paragraph 6.3 of the report and at Appendix C 
and Appendix D.

3.7 The Housing Investment Programme (HIP) shows an outturn position and 
updated slippage of £4.949m compared to a revised budget of £10.004m. 
Details of the full programme and additional slippage are contained within 
section 6.8 of the report and at Appendix E and Appendix F. 

3.8 Commentary and review of reserves and a reserves statement at Appendix G 
and H.

4 GENERAL FUND (REVENUE) VARIANCE ANALYSIS
4.1 The forecast outturn position as at Quarter 3 was reported to Growth Overview 

and Scrutiny on 13 February 2019.  At this time, the forecast variance on the 
total cost of provision of service was £688k. The outturn position is £686k and 

22



is shown at line 12 in table 2 below.  The details of significant variances are 
provided below in section 4.4.  It is important to note that Council approved on 
31 January 2019 the use of the business rates gain (arising from the 100% pilot 
scheme) to fund towards the balancing of the 2018/19 financial year.  

4.2 The Directorate headings showing budget and outturn are detailed in Table 2 
below:

Table 2

Directorate

2018/19 
Original 
Budget 
£’000

2018/19 
Revised 

Budget (less 
Budget carry 

forwards)  
£’000

2018/19 
Draft 

Outturn 
£’000

2018/19 
Variance to 

revised 
budget 
£’000

1 Commercial 
and Operational

6,296 6,398 6,554 156

2 Growth 6,544 6,810 6,878 68

3 Resources 4,321 5,590 5,324 (266)

4 Removal of 
Accounting 
Adjustments

1,346 1,346

5 Net Cost of 
Services Total

17,161 18,798 20,102 1,304

6 Interest and 
Investment 
Income & 
Interest Payable

(198) (198) (327) (129)

7 Minimum 
Revenue 
Provision

247 247 154 (93)

8 Depreciation (3,400) (3,400) (4,099) (699)

9 Local Council 
Tax Support 
Grant

22 22 22 0

10 Reserves (2,206) (3,524) (3,237) 287

11 Grants (151) (276) (260) 16

12 Total Cost of 
Provision of 
Service

11,475 11,669 12,355 686

13 Business Rates (4,400) (4,400) (4,423) (23)

23



Directorate

2018/19 
Original 
Budget 
£’000

2018/19 
Revised 

Budget (less 
Budget carry 

forwards)  
£’000

2018/19 
Draft 

Outturn 
£’000

2018/19 
Variance to 

revised 
budget 
£’000

14 Business Rates 
Growth and s31 
grants

(250) (517) (2,430) (1,913)

15 Collection Fund 
(Surplus)/Deficit

321 321 321 0

16 Transfer to 
Regeneration 
Reserve

713 713

17 Transfer to 
Reserves

610 610

18 Council Tax (7,146) (7,146) (7,146) 0

19 Working 
balance transfer

73 0 (73)

20 Total funding (11,475) (11,669) (12,355) (686)

21 Total Variance 
(to)/from 
reserves

0 0 0 0

Notes for table 2:
 Line 4 – removal of accounting entries specifically IAS19 (employee 

pension), Revenue Expenditure Financed from Capital under Statute 
(REFCUS), asset revaluations and capital grants received. These are 
detailed in the table below

Table 3

Removal of Accounting Adjustments £’000
IAS 19 (employee pension) (1,086)
REFCUS 577
Asset revaluations (352)
Capital Grants 2,207
Total 1,346

 
 Line 5 – this line shows the net overall expenditure at cost centre level
 Line 6 - Additional interest income has been earned through investment of 

increased cash balances and interest rate changes.

24



 Line 8 - this is a non-cash item to reflect the financing costs of holding assets 
 Lines 16-17 – These adjustments were in accordance with Council approval 

on 31 January 2019.

Earmarked Reserves
4.3 The table below details the projected movements to specific reserves as part 

of the outturn analysis.  These movements are in respect of grants and 
contributions that are required to fund specific expenditure items in the 
2019/20 financial year.

Table 4

Reserve/Grant Heading Contribution 
to Reserve

£’000
Specific Grants:
Flexible Homelessness Support 
Grant
Individual Electoral Registration 
New Burdens Grant
MHCLG EU Exit Preparation
Rogue Landlord funding
MHCLG Controlling Migration
MHCLG transparency code new 
burdens
Urban Gym-Grantham Rotary
Welfare Reform
 

178

5
30
17
22
31

8
20

100

Total 411

Summary of Significant Variances

4.4 In order to understand outturn at service level which is shown in Table 2 
(lines 1 – 3) the following commentary provides a summary of the significant 
variances by Directorate. 

25



Table 5

Variances > £20k by Directorate
Variance 

£’000
One Off or 
Recurring 

Commercial and Operational
Fuel – The average national increase in fuel prices has been 
above the 5% level that was budgeted for.  Additional provision 
has been factored in for future years. The overspend is funded 
from earmarked reserves as shown in Appendix A.

80 Additional 
resources 
allocated 
2019/20

Vehicle Repairs - An increase in the number of external repairs 
due to the capacity of the workshop and specialist nature of the 
works required.  During 2019/20 a review of the workshop will be 
undertaken to determine the future resource implications

59 Additional 
resources 
allocated 
2019/20

Flood Prevention - Allocated funding to undertake additional 
projects during 2018/19 was no longer required since the 
programme of works has been finalised.

(48) One Off

Private Sector Housing – There are a number of income and 
expenditure items under this service heading that fall within the 
category of REFCUS (revenue expenditure funded from capital 
under statute).  These items specifically relate to discretionary 
facilities grants and housing assistance grants, these have been 
removed at line 4 at table 2.

(615) One Off

Private Sector Housing – Specific costs incurred under this 
heading related to capitalisation of salaries

(61) One Off

Environmental Services - A reduction in the use of contractors 
has resulted in a saving against the budget.   

(30) One Off

Big Clean - The second permanent Big Clean crew were not 
recruited until June which has resulted in an underspend.  
However, all of the outcomes were delivered during the financial 
year therefore this represents an efficiency saving

(40) One Off

Street Scene – Additional income has been received for 
amenities collection service which was not anticipated.

(36) Recurring

Green Waste Collection –Additional income has been received, 
with 28,074 households renewing their subscription for 2018/19 
and 914 new households joining the service throughout the year. 

(48) This 
increase 

has been 
built in 

2019/20
Accident repairs costs have been incurred during the year, these 
costs will be funded from the insurance reserve as shown in 
Appendix A.

28 One Off

Waste and Recycling – There is an overspend on wages due to 
staff absence with posts needing to be covered to meet health 
and safety requirements and an overspend on pensions due to 
auto-enrolment, the pension costs of these posts have been 
budgeted in 2019/20 

53 One Off

Pension costs for accounting entry IAS19 are included within the 
Directorate, these have been removed at line 4 at table 2.

897 One Off

Total 239

26



Variances > £20k by Directorate
Variance 

£’000
One Off or 
Recurring 

Growth

Income from Commercial Properties – New opportunities are 
being actively pursued, however no further investment purchases 
have been made during the year therefore the income budget 
has not been met.

93 The budget 
has been 

decreased 
in 2019/20

Cinema Development - The updated timeline of this scheme has 
resulted in the rental income from the retail units not being 
achieved. 

30 The budget 
has been 

decreased 
in 2019/20

Planning and Pre-planning fees – this income has increased due 
to an increase in the number of planning applications received 
during the year

(99) One Off

Planning Policy – the district’s local plan inspection was during 
May 2019 which resulted in an underspend which is offset by a 
reduced reserve movement

(79) One Off

Arts Centres – The budgeted level of income from room hire was 
not achieved in 2018/19 due to a lower level of bookings than 
anticipated.  

31 One Off

Christmas Lights – Additional investment in Grantham town 
centre lights.  This will be funded from the Special Expense Area 
meaning that this is funded from the precept collected for the 
special expense area of Grantham.

35 One Off

Council Offices - Loss of rental income due to a tenant not 
renewing their lease.

43 The budget 
has been 

decreased 
in 2019/20

Council Offices - In year changes to lease arrangement at The 
Maltings has resulted in a saving against the budget.

(26) The budget 
has been 

decreased 
in 2019/20

Car Parks - A change in enforcement hours has resulted in a 
reduction in expenditure

(26) One Off

Car Parks - The budgeted increase in car parking income is 
currently not being achieved.  There has been a review of car 
parks that has resulted in some additional capacity being created 
during the year although there has been no material increase in 
income. The income budget in 2019/20 has been reduced.

283 The budget 
has been 

decreased 
in 2019/20

Leisure Centres - Additional in year equipment and repairs costs 
at Deepings, Stamford and Grantham has resulted in an over 
spend

40 One Off

Utilities – Additional pricing increases during the winter months 
has increased costs for electricity in 2018/19

33 Recurring – 
potentially 

a budget 
pressure 

for 2019/20

27



Variances > £20k by Directorate
Variance 

£’000
One Off or 
Recurring 

Homelessness - There has been a significant rise in demand for 
emergency accommodation resulting in an over spend. Further 
review work is currently being undertaken to mitigate future 
costs.

55 One Off

Pension costs for accounting entry IAS19 are included within the 
Directorate These have been removed at line 4 at table 2.

626 One Off

Accounting entries for asset revaluations are included within the 
Directorate. These have been removed at line 4 at table 2.

362 One Off

Accounting entries for capital grants received in 2018/19 are 
included within the Directorate, these have been removed at line 
4 at table 1.

(2,207) One Off

Shop Front Schemes - There are a number of income and 
expenditure items under this service heading that fall within the 
category of REFCUS (revenue expenditure funded from capital 
under statute).  These have been removed at line 4 at table 2.

38 One Off

Depreciation – Accounting entries for additional depreciation is 
included within the Directorate. This has been removed at line 8.

756 One Off

Total 138
Resources
Income generation from shared service opportunities – a number 
of planning policy officers are seconded to Rutland CC; additional 
opportunities to share have been discounted resulting in the 
income target not being met.

113 One Off

Procurement – new initiatives have been implemented but due to 
the timelines involved there has been a delay in the achievement 
of these savings and these are now expected to be realised in 
2019/20

180 One Off

Service reviews – the review programme will be completed in 
2019/20

50 One Off

Business Rates – Reassessment costs have been incurred 
during 2018/19 which will be offset by future additional NDR 
income

46 One Off

Corporate consultancy – these savings were not achieved during 
2018/19.

30 One Off

Agency – the level of vacancies in key posts throughout the year 
has meant that the saving will not be delivered.

75 One Off

‘White space’ initiative – this initiative has not been implemented 
due to alternative options being reviewed which has resulted in 
the budget savings

(70) One Off

Utilities –base budgets had already been reduced in line with 
costs prior to this bid being submitted therefore these savings are 
not deliverable

50 One Off

Removal of vacant posts – savings from the removal of vacant 
posts are reflected in service budgets.

45 One Off

28



Variances > £20k by Directorate
Variance 

£’000
One Off or 
Recurring 

Corporate overtime and call out payments – the saving built into 
the budget has not been achieved due to the overtime and call 
out requirements of frontline service areas

63 One Off

Subscriptions – a target £50k budget reduction was set for 
2018/19, £25k has been achieved to date but subscriptions will 
continue to be reviewed as they come due for renewal.

25 One Off

Administration subsidy grant in respect of benefits administration 
and council tax administration - an additional grant allocation has 
been received this year

(111) One Off

Grants have been received in 2018/19 for Universal Credit 
support and resource management. This was not budgeted 
income.

(142) One Off

The Council has entered into a collaborative partnership across 
Lincolnshire to undertake a study into options for sustainable 
housing led growth.

15 One Off

Staffing budgets - In year forecast savings of vacant posts which 
have been offset by an increase in agency and recruitment costs

57 One Off

System Costs – There have been additional costs incurred in 
respect of the upgrading of the HR and Payroll system.  This 
upgrade will deliver longer term licence cost savings

79 One Off

ICT – Corporate licence fee which was not budgeted for during 
2018/19

65 One Off

Audit - Changes to planned audit days has resulted in a forecast 
saving. 

(32) The budget 
has been 

decreased 
in 2019/20

HRA Recharges – Increase in recharge base following 
realignment of costs

(274) Recurring

Pension costs for accounting entry IAS19 are included within the 
Directorate These have been removed at line 4 

(437) One Off

Total (173)
Non-directorate variances
Interest and Investment income – additional income has been 
received as investment balances are higher than originally 
anticipated. 

(77) One Off

Interest payable and Minimum Revenue Provision – no additional 
external borrowing has been undertaken during the financial year

(145) One Off

Accounting Entries totalling £1.346m are within the directorates 
and removed at line 4 as they are non-cash items

1,346 One Off

Additional depreciation totalling £699k is within the directorates 
and removed at line 8 as this is a non-cash item

(699) One Off

Reduction in the use of reserves and grants in 2018/19 303 One Off

29



4.5 CARRY FORWARDS
The following table details the budget carry forwards into 2019/20 to fund the 
following specific projects:

Table 6

PROJECT BUDGET CARRY 
FORWARD

£’000
Funding of Community Cleaning initiatives – 
budget underspend from 2018/19

25

Continued Food Waste trial costs – carry 
forward from 2017/18

45

Funding of Economic Development initiatives 
– business rates additional income

60

Funding of the District local plan – funded 
from specific reserve

91

Funding for Council priority Deliver SK – 
funded from local priorities reserve

59

Funding for roof repairs at Broad Street 
Stamford property – additional business rates 
income

25

Funding of remedial works identified in closed 
burial grounds – additional business rates 
income

23

Funding of remedial asbestos works identified 
– additional business rates income

50

Funding of a feasibility study for Red Lion 
Square – additional business rates income

12

Funding for Public Realm project – funded 
from Local Priorities Reserve

47

Funding for Transformation project – funded 
from Invest to Save reserve

150

Funding for One SK – funded from Local 
Priorities Reserve 

59

Funding for ICT server infrastructure 
feasibility – funded from Local Priorities 
Reserve

58

Total 704

30



5 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) VARIANCE ANALYSIS

5.1 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a 'ring fenced' account and relates 
to the Council's Landlord functions. Revenue raised by rents and service 
charges must be sufficient to match expenditure. A summary table is provided 
below and in detail at Appendix B.

5.2 The original budget for 2018/19 was set at a surplus for the year of £6.668m 
against an actual surplus of £4.301m. The surplus is transferred to the 
reserves in order to provide additional internal funding for the HRA capital 
programme.

Table 7

Housing Revenue Account
2018/19 
Original 
Budget 
£’000

2018/19
Adjusted 
Budget 
£’000

 2018/19 
Draft 

Outturn 
£’000

2018/19 
Variance 

(Adjusted) 
£’000

Income
Expenditure

(25,439)
16,183

(25,439)
16,345

(25,254)
19,296

185
2,951

Net Cost of Service (9,256) (9,094) (5,958) 3,136

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,816 2,816 2,793 (23)
Interest and Investment Income (228) (228) (384) (156)
Other accounting adjustments (752) (752)
DEFICIT (SURPLUS) FOR THE 
YEAR ON THE HRA (6,668) (6,506) (4,301) 2,205

5.3 As documented at Appendix B the reduced surplus for 2018/19 is impacted 
by a number of both positive and negative variances.  The most significant 
variances are as follows:

 The income expected from housing rents is £253k below budget due to 
write-offs of £115k and the void rate being higher than expected. There is 
also loss of rents through a high volume of right to buy sales. This is partly 
offset by additional income of £45k from services and facilities charges.
There is a total overspend of £949k on the repairs and maintenance. This 
includes a pension cost of £517k, however this is reversed out of the HRA 
through the statement of movement.  Support recharges were £188k more 
than expected and increases in material costs (£113k), reactive works 
(£345k) and the workforce efficiency (£94k) not being achieved due to 
vacancies being lower than anticipated, also contributed.  These were 
offset by increased income from rechargeable works (£97k) and planned 
maintenance underspend of £153k. 

31



 The workforce efficiency of (£41k) has also not been achieved on the 
Supervision and Management budget due to vacant posts being lower than 
anticipated. In addition to this, legal costs have increased by £39k due to 
more complex repossession cases. Support recharges were £363k more 
than expected and a pension cost of £226k is included, however this is 
reversed out of the HRA through the statement of movement.

 The HRA share of corporate and democratic costs has not increased as 
expected so is under spent by £116k. Recharges from the General Fund 
have increased overall as additional services have been provided by 
Transformation, Communications, Customer Services, and new IT 
systems have been implemented across the Council.  

 Capital costs of £1.469m have occurred, this is a combination of £2.549m 
revaluation gains and £4.018m expenditure on non-enhancing capital 
(expenditure incurred through the HRA capital programme, in respect of 
activities to maintain the decent homes standard within the housing stock).

6 Capital Programmes

6.1 The original capital budget for 2018/19 was set at £14.839m.  The budget is 
revised during the year as new projects are identified.  The updated position 
of £25.478m is shown in the ‘Adjusted Budget’ column in table 10 below.  A 
summary of the budget changes that have been approved during the year 
are as follows:

Table 8

Approval Date Capital Budget Adjustment £’000
June 2018 Budget carry forwards 528
July 2018 Grounds Maintenance Vehicles 450
July 2018 St Peter’s Hill Public Realm 1,661
Sept 2018 Property Acquisition 8,000

6.2 The general fund capital outturn position for 2018/19 is summarised in table 
10 below.  The capital budget has an underspend of £9.428m which has 
reduced the requirement to use reserves to £4.655m for the financial year. 

6.3 The following additional carry forward amounts (further to the amounts 
previously approved by Council) have been identified for inclusion into the 
2019/20 General Fund capital programme

32



Table 9

Scheme Budget Carry 
Forward £’000

St Peter’s Hill Development 1,736
Public Realm 1,015
Gravitas Housing Scheme 280
Tourism Signage 50
Vehicle Electric Charging Points 39
Equilogic Server Based Storage 20
Power Supply Replacement 15
Pool Vehicles 12
Total 3,167

6.4 A detailed general fund capital monitoring statement is attached at Appendix 
D which provides details of the progress of the schemes. The full details of 
the financing of the programme is attached at Appendix D.

Table 10

 
General Fund Capital 
Programme

2018/19 
Origina

l 
Budget 

£000

2018/19 
Adjuste

d 
Budget 

£000

2018/19 
Draft 

Outturn 
£000

2018/19 
Variance 
(Adjusted

) £000

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY     
Commercial and Operations 835 1,585 1,330 (255)
Growth 13,879 23,726 14,567 (9,159)
Resources 125 167 153 (14)
 14,839 25,478 16,050 (9,428)

Financing Analysis     
Prudential Borrowing (2,000) (10,000) (8,052) 1,948
Use of Reserves (10,917) (13,513) (4,655) 8,858
Capital Receipts (788) (788) (1,180) (392)
Capital Grants and Contributions (1,134) (1,177) (2,163) (986)

 (14,839) (25,478)
(16,050

)
9,428

NET EXPENDITURE 0 0 0 0

6.5 As documented in Appendix D there are a number of both positive and 
negative variances which form the £9.428m underspend.  The most significant 
variances are as follows:  

 The balance of the commercial investments acquisition budget has not 
been spent during this financial year resulting in an underspend of £3.9m

33



 There is a £1.680m underspend on the Wherry’s Lane Bourne housing 
project.  The project commenced in October 2018 which is a 12-month 
programme. £1.4m of underspend has been incorporated into 2019/20 
budget, with the balance of £280k proposed to be carried forward.

 Works on the cinema have progressed during the year, with the building 
shell being completed.  Fit-out will continue into 2019/20 requiring the 
remaining budget of £1.736m to be carried forward

 Initial works have commenced on the Public Realm project, but completion 
is forecast to be June 2019, resulting in an £1.015m carry forward of this 
budget into next year.

 The Council has received £797k of disabled facilities grant funding which 
is underspent by £479k.  Mandatory DFGs require a referral from 
Lincolnshire County Council Occupational Therapy Team.  

6.6 The following table summarises the HRA capital outturn position as at 31 
March 2019.  The capital budget was set at £10.004m and currently has an 
underspend of £4.949m which has reduced the in-year transfer from reserves.  

6.7 This underspend mainly relates to the property development budget spend 
which is dependent upon sites being identified for investment.  £4.130m 
budget and associated funding has been slipped into 2019/20 for this.

6.8 The following additional carry forward (further to the amounts previously 
approved by Council) has been identified for inclusion into the 2019/20 
Housing Revenue Account capital programme.

 Repairs Vehicles £90k

6.9 A detailed HRA capital monitoring statement is attached at Appendix E 
which provides details of the 2018/19 Outturn position of the schemes.  The 
full details of the financing of the programme is attached at Appendix F.

Table 11

 
HRA Capital Programme

2018/19
Original 
Budget 

£000

2018/189
Adjusted 
Budget 

£000

2018/19 
Draft 

Outturn 
£000

2018/19 
Variance 

(Adjusted) 
£000

HRA Investment Programme     
Stock Improvements & New Build Programme 9,680 9,680 4,765 (4,915)
Purchase of Vehicles 324 324 184 (140)
 10,004 10,004 4,949 (5,055)
Financing Analysis     
Major Repairs Reserve (4,214) (4,214) (4,202) 12
Property Development Reserve (5,000) (5,000) (277) 4,723
HRA Capital Receipts (790) (790) (470) 320
 (10,004) (10,004) (4,949) 5,055
NET EXPENDITURE 0 0 0 0

34



7 COMMENTARY ON BALANCES AND RESERVES 
7.1 An integral element of the closedown procedure is to undertake a review of 

the usage and levels of the Council’s reserves and balances.  The financial 
statements reflect the proposed use of these and specific details of the 
significant balances and reserves are set out below and detailed at Appendix 
G & H.

The overall General Fund reserves position is a variance of £7.432m when 
compared with the forecast position which was presented to Council in March 
2019.  This is largely due to timing differences with the delivery of the General 
Fund capital programme which has been referenced at table 7 above.

  Discretionary Reserves £13.694m (lines 1-16)

7.2 These reserves have been established to financially support the delivery of 
the Council’s Corporate Strategy including both revenue and capital projects.  
In response to the Corporate Plan there is an ambition to focus funding 
towards initiatives that accelerate economic growth, e.g. visitor economy, 
tourism, heritage etc. 

7.3 The Local Priorities Reserve (line 10) has received New Homes Bonus of 
£2.086m and allocations have been utilised as follows: 

- £631k has funded revenue costs 
- £1.416m has been utilised as capital financing 
- £500k transferred to the Regeneration reserve
- £780k transferred to the St Peter’s Hill Reserve to complete the Cinema 

project. 

This leaves a closing balance £9.680m.

7.4 ICT Investment Reserve (line 6) In accordance with the decision made by 
Council on 31 January 2019 this reserve has been increased to £320k. This 
reserve will be utilised in the short to medium term to finance strategic ICT 
infrastructure improvements.

7.5 Invest to Save Reserve (line 11) In accordance with the decision made by 
Council on 31 January 2019 this reserve has been increased to £1.00m. The 
primary purpose of the reserve is to ‘pump prime’ initiatives for projects that 
clearly demonstrate within a business case that cashable savings could be 
realised following a one-off injection of investment. 

7.6 Housing Delivery Reserve (line 12) This reserve has been increased to £912k 
following the outturn of the remaining unspent grant received in respect of 
disabled facilities improvements. Proposals to utilise this reserve are currently 
being developed.

7.7 Property Maintenance Reserve (line 14) This reserve has been established 
with a balance of £110k. The primary purpose of this reserve is to provide in-

35



year funding to support unforeseen expenditure that may arise in respect of 
the Council’s asset portfolio that would have a detrimental impact on the asset 
if not treated. 

7.8 Regeneration Reserve £1.213m (line 15) In order to provide the available 
financing for the acquisition of key strategic assets, this reserve has been 
established with a balance of £1.213m. The Council will use a combination of 
both internal and external borrowing as required which will incur an MRP 
(minimum revenue provision) cost and possible interest costs (where external 
borrowing is undertaken). For 2019/20 £718k of this reserve has been 
committed to contribute towards the following costs associated with the 
strategic property acquisition in Stamford. These consist of £418k of 
operational costs and £300k of interest related to the borrowing costs. 

Governance and Audit Committee approved that the use of this reserve is 
expanded to finance any feasibility costs that will arise as potential 
development opportunities are explored.  This expenditure will be closely 
monitored and limited to £150k in each financial year.

7.9 Crowd Funding Reserve £100k - at the Rural and Communities OSC on 13 
June 2019, members considered a report with respect to a crowdfunding 
initiative. The Committee recommended that a pilot scheme be introduced 
across the District and asked the Governance and Audit Committee to set a 
side £100k from year end balances to fund the pilot scheme.  This was 
approved by the Governance and Audit Committee on 21 June 2019.  The 
proposal would enable the Council to provide financial support to community 
projects utilising an online platform called Spacehive where community 
initiatives are advertised and promoted.  The site is also backed by a number 
of national enterprises who provide additional funding to support community 
initiatives.  The approach gives the Council the opportunity to fund initiatives 
that meet the Council’s requirements.  The Spacehive solution requires an 
annual subscription fee of £30k with the balance of the reserve being utilised to 
fund any projects the Council wishes to directly financially support. The initial 
subscription provides for both the online presence as well as kick-off meetings, 
project creator workshops, the verification of ideas and go-live support for 
projects. Spacehive also provide some on the ground training to those who are 
likely to be seeking funding to help them to make their applications as attractive 
as possible.  As this reserve is to be set up in the current financial year it is not 
shown in the reserves appendix information which shows reserves as at 31 
March 2019.

  Governance Reserves £3.541m (lines 17-23)

7.10 These reserves are maintained to mitigate risk, satisfy statutory and grant 
awarding bodies requirements and support prudent financial management 

7.11 The Insurance Reserve (£308k line 17) provides cover to meet unforeseen 
costs relating to insurance claims over and above the provisions made in year 

36



as part of managing the ‘in house risk’ with an increased self-insured strategy. 
During the year £28K has been used to fund claims and insurance premium.

7.12 The Council holds two Pension Reserves (£1.432m lines 18, 19). The current 
employees reserve provides for potential capital costs of any future early 
retirements and also helps to protect the Council from large changes in 
Council Tax resulting from unanticipated rises in the employer's contribution 
rate following future triennial valuations.  The level of the reserve is being 
maintained in order to fund the pension payment reducing the Council 
contribution rate from 21.1% to 16.5%.  This decision has had a positive 
impact on the revenue budgets for the same period.

7.13 Business Rates and Volatility Reserve £1.507m (line 20) To ensure there is 
minimum financial disruption to the funding of the General Fund in respect of 
Business Rates income, the Council has established a reserve to smooth out 
fluctuations in year to year funding.  In accordance with the approved budget 
framework for 2018/19 £397k has been utilised to offset the business rate 
deficit that was brought forward from the previous year.  

7.14 Special Expense Area reserves £214k (line 23) The Grantham SEA has been 
utilised by £85k to fund the Wyndham Park improvements.  This reserve has 
been replenished by £39k leaving a balance of £214k.  This is broken down 
as:

 Bourne SEA £17k

 Grantham SEA £107k

 Langtoft SEA £3k

 Stamford SEA £87k
General Fund working balance £2.835m (line 26)

7.15 The purpose of this working balance is to ensure there is sufficient financial 
resource available in order to meet unforeseen events during the course of 
the financial year.  
The proposed minimum balance is set at a level that reflects the financial risk 
the Council is currently exposed to. In previous years the target has been £1m, 
but a higher actual balance is being maintained and it is proposed to retain the 
working balance at a minimum of £2.5m due to the anticipated financial 
volatility over the medium term including the uncertainty of future funding from 
Government.

General Fund Capital Reserves £6.339m (line 33)

7.16 LAMS reserve £18k (line 29) - The Local Authority Mortgage Scheme (LAMS) 
is no longer in operation for all authorities; however the Council continues to 
receive investment interest that is derived from the investment that was placed 
to support the scheme.  The remaining balance of £18k will be retained until 
the final mortgage maturity of August 2020.  At the end of the investment 

37



period the balance will be reviewed in relation to the outstanding guarantee 
commitment and excess funds returned to balances. 

7.17 St Peter’s Hill Development £1.959m (line 30) - This reserve is utilised to fund 
the Cinema project and the adjoining public realm project.  During the year, 
£1.673m has been allocated to the reserve and £2.321m has been used to 
fund the 2018/19 expenditure.  The remaining balance will be fully utilised to 
fund the final stages of the project.

7.18 General Fund - Capital Reserve - £1.775m (line 31) - The General Fund capital 
reserve is used to assist with the funding of the capital programme.  During 
the year £732K was used to fund the acquisition of vehicles replacement 
programme but the reserve was credited with the maturity income arising from 
the LAMS investment. 

7.19 Useable Capital Receipts Reserve £2.587m (line 32) - This reserve is one of 
the sources of funding the General Fund capital programme. During the year 
the Council has received £866k from vehicle sales.  The remaining 
expenditure of the capital programme has been financed from this reserve in 
lieu of borrowing.   

HRA Reserves £38.719m Line 12

7.20 HRA working balance £2.007m (line 5) - This balance serves the same 
purpose as the General Fund working balance in that it is established to 
respond to unforeseen financial events that occur during the financial year.  

7.21 Capital Receipts Reserve (HRA) £6.659m (line 7) - The Council has 
established a capital receipts reserve where the ‘Right to Buy’ sale receipts 
are allocated. During the year £470k has been used to contribute towards the 
new build programme and receipts of £3.798m have been received from HRA 
sales including 64 housing stock. This reserve will continue to be utilised to 
contribute to the provision of affordable housing and the provision of additional 
Council housing stock.

7.22 Loan Repayment Reserve (HRA) £1.350m (line 8) – In accordance with 
Council approval on 31 March 2018 £15.00m has been allocated from this 
reserve to the Property Development Reserve (line 10) to fund the property 
development programme. As at 31 March 2019 £277k has been utilised. 

7.23 Major Repairs Reserve (HRA) £12.658m (line 9) - This reserve has been 
credited with £6.532m to fund its capital expenditure and been charged 
£4.202m to fund capital items for the 2018/19 programme. This will continue 
to be the primary financing for the HRA Capital Programme.

8.0 LOOKING AHEAD
8.1 The financial climate continues to be challenging but the Council has robust 

plans to deliver the ambitions set out in the Corporate Strategy and lead the 
Council to financial autonomy.  Members will be aware that the innovation and 

38



commercial agenda carries a level of risk which is inevitable when introducing 
a transformation ambition.  Therefore, it is important that members have timely 
and accurate financial information which will provide forecasts and variance 
narrative to assist members to undertake the appropriate scrutiny and 
guidance during the remainder of the financial year.

8.2 The level of reserves in order to provide financial resilience and support to 
deliver the Council’s ambitions are reviewed regularly in order to ensure the 
Council is protected from financial volatility in the medium term. The Medium 
Term Financial Plan reviewed annually will include reserves as part of the 
financial planning framework. The full details of reserves are shown in 
Appendices G & H.

9 Reasons for the Recommendations(s)
9.1 Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services OSC is asked to 

review the financial outturn for 2018/19 and make any specific observations 
or recommendations that can be incorporated into the medium term financial 
plan.

10 Financial Implications 
10.1 These are included in the report

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Strategic Director 
of Finance

11 Legal and Governance Implications 
Governance and Audit Committee considered and approved the outturn 
report at their meeting on 21 June 2019 in accordance with the terms of 
reference of the Committee.  

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Head of Legal

12 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
12.1 Not applicable

13 Risk and Mitigation
13.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks 

have been identified.

14 Community Safety Implications 
14.1 Not applicable

15 Other Implications (where significant) 
15.1 Not applicable

16 Background Papers

39



16.1 Determination of Budget 2018/19 and indicative budgets to 20/21 – General 
Fund, Housing Revenue Account and associated Capital Programmes 
Report 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s19700/CFM453Budget
%20COUNCIL%20V2.pdf

Outturn Position 2017/18 report 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20657/CFM459%20outt
urn%20v6%20new%20template.pdf

Financial Management Report for 2018/19 – April – June (Quarter 1) 
Monitoring Information Report 
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/b6222/Q1%20Financial%20outturn%2
0201819%2025th-Jul-
2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committe
e.pdf?T=9

Quarter 2 Financial Monitoring Report 2018/19

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s21783/CFM478%20Budget%20Monit
oring%20Qtr2%20Final%2020.11.18.pdf

Quarter 3 Financial Monitoring Report 2018/19

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22244/Quarter%203%2
0Financial%20Monitoring%20Report%202018-19.pdf

17 Appendices
17.1 Appendix A – General Fund Summary – Outturn 2018/19

Appendix B – HRA – Outturn 2018/19

Appendix C –General Fund Capital Programme Outturn 2018/19

Appendix D – General Fund Capital Programme Financing

Appendix E – HRA Capital Programme -Outturn 2018/19

Appendix F – HRA Capital Financing

Appendix G – General Fund Reserves

Appendix H – HRA Reserves

Date of Publication on Forward Plan 
(if required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Growth 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

13 February 2019

Report 
Timeline: 

Decision date  21 June 2019

40

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s19700/CFM453Budget%20COUNCIL%20V2.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s19700/CFM453Budget%20COUNCIL%20V2.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20657/CFM459%20outturn%20v6%20new%20template.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s20657/CFM459%20outturn%20v6%20new%20template.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/b6222/Q1%20Financial%20outturn%20201819%2025th-Jul-2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=9
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/b6222/Q1%20Financial%20outturn%20201819%2025th-Jul-2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=9
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/b6222/Q1%20Financial%20outturn%20201819%2025th-Jul-2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=9
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/b6222/Q1%20Financial%20outturn%20201819%2025th-Jul-2018%2010.00%20Growth%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=9
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s21783/CFM478%20Budget%20Monitoring%20Qtr2%20Final%2020.11.18.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s21783/CFM478%20Budget%20Monitoring%20Qtr2%20Final%2020.11.18.pdf


SUMMARY OF GENERAL FUND ESTIMATES

2018/19 Outturn

Appendix A

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19
Original Adjusted Adjusted Budget Carry Forward Adjusted Draft Outturn

Budget Budget Forward Budget Outturn Variance

A B C B-C E

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Directorate

1 Commercial and Operations 6,296 6,468 (70) 6,398 6,554 156

2 Growth 6,544 7,177 (367) 6,810 6,878 68

3 Resources 4,321 5,857 (267) 5,590 5,324 (266)

4 Removal of Accounting Adjustments 1,346 1,346

5 Net Cost of Service 17,161 19,502 (704) 18,798 20,102 1,304

6 Interest and investment Income (250) (250) (250) (327) (77)

7 Interest Payable 52 52 52 0 (52)

8 Minimum Revenue Provision 247 247 247 154 (93)

9 Depreciation (3,400) (3,400) (3,400) (4,099) (699)

10 Local Council Tax Support Scheme Grant 22 22 22 22 0 

13,832 16,173 (704) 15,469 15,852 383 

Income from Reserves & Grants

11 Events & Festivals (160) (160) (160) (116) 44

12 Football  3G 0 0 25 25

13 Apprenticeships (65) (65) (65) (36) 29

14 Economic Development & Growth (120) (120) 79 (41) (41) 0

15 Community Fund (150) (150) (150) (72) 78

16 Ward Member Fund (56) (56) (56) (56) 0

17 Big Clean (200) (200) (200) (171) 29

18 Invest to Save (332) (481) 150 (331) (202) 129

19 Pension Reserve (797) (797) (797) (802) (5)

20 Building Control Trading Account 22 22 22 37 15

21 Special Expense Areas 49 49 49 39 (10)

22 Local Priorities Reserve  0 (664) 165 (499) (460) 39

23 Service Improvement Reserve  0 (866) (866) (844) 22

24 Waste & Recycling Initiatives 0 0 0 (80) (80)

25 Stamford Art Centre Bequest 0 (33) (33) (33) 0

26 Insurance Reserve 0 0 0 (28) (28)

27 Transfer from NNDR volatility reserve (397) (397) (397) (397) 0

28 Grants (151) (321) 45 (276) (260) 16

(2,357) (4,239) 439 (3,800) (3,497) 303

29 Total Net Cost of Service 11,475 11,934 (265) 11,669 12,355 686 

30 Business Rates (4,400) (4,400) (4,400) (4,423) (23)

31 Business Rates Pilot Gain (250) (709) 192 (517) (2,430) (1,913)

32 Collection Fund Deficit 321 321 321 321 0

33 Transfer to Regeneration Reserve 0 0 0 713 713

34 Transfer to Reserve 0 0 0 0 500 500

35 Transfer to Property Maintenance Reserve 0 0 110 110

36 Council Tax (7,146) (7,146) (7,146) (7,146) 0

37 Working balance transfer 73 73 0 (73)

38 Total Funding (11,475) (11,934) 265 (11,669) (12,355) (686)

39 Total Variance (to)/from reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 

41



Housing Revenue Account Summary Appendix B

Budget 

£'000

Adjusted 

Budget 

£'000

Draft 

Outturn 

£'000

Outturn 

Variance 

£'000

INCOME

Dwelling Rents (24,439) (24,439) (24,186) 253

Non Dwelling Rents (311) (311) (330) (19)

Charges for Services and Facilities (622) (622) (667) (45)

Other Income (67) (67) (71) (4)

TOTAL INCOME (25,439) (25,439) (25,254) 185

EXPENDITURE

Repairs and Maintenance 7,907 7,913 8,862 949

Supervision and Management - General 2,783 2,866 3,553 687

Supervision and Management - Special 1,097 1,203 1,242 39

HRA share of Corporate and Democratic Costs 460 460 344 (116)

Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed Assets 3,431 3,431 3,504 73

Revaluation Losses (Gains) 0 0 (2,583) (2,583)

Non- Enhancing Capital Expenditure 0 0 4,018 4,018

Debt Management Expenses 35 35 39 4

Provision for bad debts 245 245 269 24

Other Expenditure (Pension Deficit) 225 225 0 (225)

Centralised Budgets 0 0 0 0

HRA Business Managers/Assistant Directors 0 (33) 0 33

HRA Internal Insurance 0 0 14 14

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 16,183 16,345 19,262 2,917

NET COST OF HRA SERVICES (9,256) (9,094) (5,992) 3,102

Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,816 2,816 2,793 (23)

Interest and Investment Income (228) (228) (384) (156)

Return on Pension Assets * 207 207

Net (Gain)/loss on sale of HRA Assets * (1,728) (1,728)

Capital receipts pooling * 803 803

DEFICIT (SURPLUS) FOR THE YEAR ON THE HRA (6,668) (6,506) (4,301) 2,205

MOVEMENT ON THE HRA BALANCE

(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year 6,668 6,506 4,301 (2,205)

Other Reserve Movements 225 225 125 (100)

Repayment Of Principal (3,222) (3,222) (3,222) 0

Transfer to Major Repairs Reserve (Depn less MRA) (3,101) (3,101) (2,890) 211

Net charges made on Retirement Benefits (IAS19) 1,062 1,062

Employer's contribution to Pension Fund (348) (348)

Net (Gain)/loss on sale of HRA Assets (1,728) (1,728)

Capital receipts pooling 803 803

Non-Enhancing Capital Expenditure Financed from MRR 4,018 4,018
Revaluation (Gains)/Losses (2,583) (2,583)
Other Adjustments 1 1

Variance - reduction in transfer to reserve 570 408 (461) (869)

*Accounting adjustment reversed out on the HRA balance

Outturn

2018/19

42



General Fund Capital Programme

2018/19 Outturn

Appendix C

Scheme Description

Original 

Budget 

£'000

Adjusted 

Budget 

£'000

Draft 

Outturn 

£'000

Variance 

(Adjusted

) £'000

Variance Explanations

Proposed 

Additional 

Slippage
COMMERCIAL

Wheelie Bin Replacements 175 175 55 (120) There is a saving of £120k due to reduced requirements.

Pool Vehicles 247 247 235 (12) An under spend (12K) has occurred due to delay in the 

delivery of some of the new vehicles.

12

Street Scene Vehicle Procurement 311 401 360 (41) Underspend due to procurement savings on purchase of 

sweeper.

Vehicle Electric Charging Points 0 39 0 (39) Procurement will take place in 19/20 to ensure the council 

achieves value for money

39

Vehicle Replacement Programme 102 163 153 (10)

EnvironmentSK Vehicle Purchase 0 560 527 (33) Cost of vehicles was less than budgeted.

835 1,585 1,330 (255) 51

Purchase of South Kesteven trailer 55 55 49 (6)

Property Acquisition 0 8,000 8,053 53

Shop Front Scheme 130 130 76 (54) Underspend due to project delays caused by weather and 

procurement issues.

St Peter's Hill Development 5,500 5,400 3,664 (1,736) Project completion expected in July 2019.  £1.55M 

underspend to be proposed additional slippage.

1,736

Property Investment Strategy 3,900 3,900 0 (3,900) Underspend has been incorporated into budget for 2019/20

Local Authority Controlled Company 2,550 2,800 1,120 (1,680) 12mth build programme, started in October.  £1.4m of 

underspend has been incorporated into 2019/20 budget, with 

the balance of £280k to be proposed additional slippage.

280

Public Realm 0 1,661 646 (1,015) Project completion expected in July 2019.  £69k underspend 

to be proposed additional slippage.

1,015

Disabled Facilities Grant 797 797 318 (479) Demand was dependant on referrals from LCC Occ 

Therapists

Empty Homes Financial Assistance 50 50 0 (50) No applications received.

Essential Home Grant Assistance 75 75 7 (68) Cases under this budget now fall under DFG

Car Park Ticket Machines 150 150 92 (58) Scheme Completed.  Costs were less than expected.

Car Park Barriers 50 50 0 (50) Project not started during the year.  Has been included in 

2019/20 budget

Deepings Leisure Centre - Boilers 70 70 0 (70) It was decided not to progress with scheme.

Meres Leisure Centre - PA System 35 35 35 0

Market Stall Covers 50 50 20 (30) Covers provided for Grantham.  Stamford & Bourne Covers 

will be replaced next year.

Tourism Signage 50 50 0 (50) Details of signs had not been finalised.  Budget of £50k will 

be proposed additional slippage.

50

Wyndham Park Lighting 25 25 31 6

Grantham Arts Centre - Theatre Lighting 35 35 36 1

Wyndham Park Improvements 357 393 410 17 Overspend due to delays and asbestos work. Contingency 

element of the HLF grant will fund 87% of additional cost.

CCTV Springfield Road 0 0 10 10 Funded through S106

13,879 23,726 14,567 (9,159) 3,081

RESOURCES

Financial System Upgrade 50 50 141 91 Additional support required, increased licensing costs and 

addition of DB capture module.

Equillogic Server Based Storage 20 20 0 (20) Delay in project, budget will be proposed additional slippage. 20

Uninterruptible Power Supply Replacement 15 15 0 (15) Delay in project, budget will be proposed additional slippage. 15

ICT Infrastructure - Sandbox Firewall 40 82 12 (70) In depth review of cyber risks delayed works, forecast 

underspend of £65k has been incorporated into 2019/20 

programme.

125 167 153 (14) 35

TOTAL 14,839 25,478 16,050 (9,428) 3,167

GROWTH

43



General Fund Capital Programme

Financing Statement 2018/19

Appendix  D

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

Description Original Adjusted Draft

Budget Budget Outturn

£'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund

Commercial and Operations 835               1,585           1,331         

Growth 13,879          23,726         14,566       

Resources 125               167              153            

TOTAL - General Fund 14,839          25,478         16,050       

GENERAL FUND FINANCED BY:

Supported Borrowing -                    -                   -                 

Unsupported Borrowing 2,000 10,000 8,052

Specific Reserve - Capital 716               777              732

Specific Reserve - St Peters Hill 5,200            5,200           2,321

Usable Capital Receipts 788               788              1,180

Capital Grants and Contributions

     - Disabled Facility Grant 797               797              325            

     - LLEP Funding -                    -                   1,443         

     - Historic England 65                 65                38              

     - Herirtage Lottery Funding 272               315              357            

Direct Revenue Financing

     - Wyndham - SEA 70                 63                85

     - S106 Monies -                    -                   10              

     - Shop Front Scheme 65                 65                38

     - ICT Reserve 76                 118              53

     - Local Priorities Reserve 4,750            7,250           1,416

     - Contribution from Revenue 40                 40                -                 

TOTAL - GF CAPITAL PROGRAMME 14,839          25,478         16,050       

44



HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

2018/19 Outturn
Appendix E

Scheme Description
Original 

Budget £'000

Adjusted 

Budget 

£'000

Draft Outturn 

£'000

Variance 

(Adjusted) 

£'000

Proposed 

Additional 

Slippage

£'000

Heating And Ventilation 1,350 1,350 1,257 (93) Progress was affected by contractors resource issues.

Repairs Vehicles 324 324 184 (140) Delivery of 2 tippers was delayed.  Proposed additional slippage of 90k 90

Kitchens & Bathrooms Programmes 1,000 1,000 1,022 22

Re-Roofing 1,100 1,132 1,125 (7)

Electrical Rewires 250 250 160 (90) Works delayed due to need to remove asbestos materials

Replacement Door Programme 80 80 84 4

External Wall Insulation 0 0 0 0

New Build Properties 790 758 232 (526)
During the year pre-build works have commenced on 7 schemes.  Cost of 

completion of these has been incorporated into the 2019/20 budget.

Property Development 5,000 5,000 779 (4,221)

Purchases in the year have been made on 2 houses and a site on  Swinegate and 

conversions have been carried out on 4 properties.  Negotiations have begun on 5 

other sites. £4.130M has already been slipped into the 2019/20 budget.

Communal Rooms 70 70 88 18 Some works completed related to capital bid on revenue.

Central Heating Repairs 0 0 3 3

Sewage Refurbishment 40 40 15 (25) Works were delayed in starting, these have been incorporated in 2019/20 proposals.

TOTAL 10,004 10,004 4,949 (5,055) 90

45



HRA Capital Programme 

Financing Statement 2018/19

Appendix F

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

Description Original Adjusted Draft

Budget Budget Outturn

£'000 £'000 £'000

Captial Programme

   Stock Improvements & New Builds 9,680 9,680 4,765

   Purchase of Vehicles 324 324 184

10,004 10,004 4,949

HRA FINANCED BY:

Major Repair Reserve 4,214 4,214 4,202

Property Development Reserve 5,000 5,000 277

Capital Receipts 790 7,490 470

TOTAL - HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME 10,004 16,704 4,949

46



Reserves Statement - General Fund

2018/19  Outturn
Appendix G

GENERAL FUND RESERVES STATEMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

Balance Transfer Transfer Actual Balance 

as at to Reserve from Reserve as at 

31 March 2018 in year in year 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund

Discretionary Reserves

1 Stamford Arts Centre 33 (33) 0

2 Training and Development 15 15

3 Events and Festivals 233 (116) 117

4 Apprenticeships 36 (36) 0

5 Waste and Recycling initatives 156 (80) 76

6 ICT investment 173 147 320

7 Economic Development & Growth 169 (41) 128

8 Service Improvement Reserve 1,065 (1,065) 0

9 Community Fund 150 (72) 78

10 Local Priorities Reserve 10,921 2,086 (3,327) 9,680

11 Invest to Save 802 198 1,000

12 Housing Delivery 347 565 912

13 Ward Members 56 (56) 0

14 Property Maintenance 110 110

15 Regeneration 1,213 1,213

16 Food Waste 170 (125) 45

14,326 4,319 (4,951) 13,694

Governance Reserves

17 Insurance Reserve 336 (28) 308

18 Pensions Reserve - Former Employees 466 (45) 421

19                                - Current EmployeesPensions Reserve - Current Employees 1,768 (757) 1,011

20 Business Rates Volatility 1,729 175 (397) 1,507

21 Building Control (7) 37 30

22 Football 3G Pitch 25 25 50

23 Special Expense Area Reserve 259 (45) 214

4,576 237 (1,272) 3,541

24 Total General Revenue Reserves 18,902 4,556 (6,223) 17,235

Homelessness 21 178                    199

Parks 89                      89

GLEP 357                    357

New Burdens Grant 111 11                      122

Neighbourhood Planning Grant 74 1                        75

Garden Towns & Villages 90 90

Custom Build 30 30

Planning Delivery 90 (14) 76

DHP top  up 7 7

Individual Electoral Registration 118 5                        123

LGA Commercial 6 6

Garden Village 385 (117) 268

Historic England 56 56

Grantham Growth 69 69

Welfare Reform 100 100

25 Government Grants Received 1,057 741 (131) 1,667

26 Working Balance 2,835 2,835

27 Total Revenue Reserves 22,794 5,297 (6,354) 21,737

28 Capital Reserve

29 LAMS Reserve 304 (286) 18

30 St Peters Hill Development 2,607 1,673 (2,321) 1,959

31 General Fund Capital Reserve 1171 1,336 (732) 1,775

32 Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 3,794 866 (2,073) 2,587

33 Total Capital Reserves 7,876 3,875 (5,412) 6,339

34 Total General Fund Reserves 30,670 9,172 (11,766) 28,076

47



Reserves Statements - HRA

2018/19 Outturn

Appendix H

HRA RESERVES STATEMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

Balance Transfer Transfer Balance 

as at to Reserve from Reserve as at 

31 March 2018 in year in year 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Revenue Reserves

1     Insurance Reserve 200 200

2     Service Specific Funds: 686 (250) 436

3     HRA Improvement Reserve 561 95 656

4     Residents Involvement Reserve 30 30

5     Working Balance 2,489 (482) 2,007

6 Total HRA Revenue Reserves 3,936 125 (732) 3,329

HRA Capital Reserve

7     HRA Capital Receipts Reserve 3,331 3,798 (470) 6,659

8     Loan Repayment Reserve 16,350 (15,000) 1,350

9     Major Repairs Reserve 10,328 6,532 (4,202) 12,658

10     Property Development Reserve 15,000 (277) 14,723

11 Total HRA Capital Reserves 30,009 25,330 (19,949) 35,390

12 Total HRA Reserves 33,945 25,455 (20,681) 38,719

48



Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee
16 July 2019

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke
The Deputy Leader of the Council

        

Performance reporting for quarters 3 and 4 for 
the financial year 2018/19
This paper sets out performance reporting for quarters 3 and 4 for the financial year 2018/19. It
Outlines the steps taken to date towards transforming how performance will be reported and 
managed in the future to align it to the corporate strategy and ensure high quality services for our 
customers.

Report Author

Clare Milner/Ben Russell, Performance Leads

 01476 406463

 c.milner@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Competitiveness Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Elaine Pepper 28 June 2019

Approved by: Lee Sirdifield 6 July 2019

Signed off by: Cllr Kelham Cooke, The Deputy Leader 6 July 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. Notes the content of the report and support the ongoing transformation of 
performance management.

49

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 At the previous meeting on the 13th February 2019 the Committee considered a report in 

relation to performance (Q1 and Q2 of 2018/19). Members were also updated in relation to 
changes to the Organisational Development and Change team in terms of structure and 
responsibilities. A new performance management framework is under development with 
the use of business intelligence (BI) software.

1.2 This report details the performance of the organisation against its corporate performance 
indicators for the period 1 October 2018 to 31 December 2018 (Quarter 3) and 1 January 
2019 to 31 March 2019 (Quarter 4), including the position at year end.

1.3 Of the 21 performance indicators across the authority, two are not currently achieving their 
target. Performance Measure CP21: ‘percentage of household waste sent for reuse, 
recycling and composting’ is within the amber threshold. This is a continued trend 
potentially linked to difficulties with contamination. The target for this measure may no 
longer be relevant following the adoption of the Joint Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy.

1.4 Measure CP19: ‘The number of apprenticeships hosted within SKDC’ continues below 
expected levels. For quarter 4 the number has however risen to nine apprentices 
employed by the Council. Projects are ongoing to identify apprenticeship opportunities that 
provide value to both the individual candidates and the authority in order to make best use 
of Apprentice Levy funds. 

1.5 Measure CP14 ‘Occupancy rates of retail units in town centres’ has achieved over the 
90% target, the yearend total reported is averaged at 92.43% of retail units occupied in the 
district’s four towns. While the target has been achieved, vacancy within the towns has 
increased incrementally from 60 vacant units to 72 in Quarter 4. Bourne saw the highest 
gain in vacant shops, 14 are currently vacant out of a total of 164 units. Stamford also has 
14 vacant units from a total of 332. The end of year figure for Grantham is 43 vacant units. 
Several shops in Grantham have relocated to other suitable premises within the town 
centre to grow their business. The Deepings statistics remain very low with only 1-2 
vacant throughout the year. 

1.6 InvestSK are working with landlords to ensure units are supported in their development. 
The Town Centre Investment Fund has played a strategic and direct role in supporting 
retailers. The grant scheme performs an important function to support the diversification of 
the town centre as the retail landscape shifts away from primary shopping. The aim is to 
ensure the town centres have a balanced economy with footfall day and night and latent 
security helped by the occupancy of more residential units in the town centres. 

1.7 The end of year performance figures, as at 31 March 2019, for all indicators, is set out in 
Appendix 2. Most of these measures are meeting or exceeding targets. This includes 
planning application performance (CPO9, CP10 and CP110) relating to the speed of 
determining applications and CP05 and CP06 relating to the collection of council tax and 
non-domestic business rates. 

1.8 As can be seen from the year end data in Appendix 2, performance measure CP02 relates 
to the collection of rent from council homes. At 96.8%, yearend performance for this 
indictor is slightly below the 98.5% target. In all other respects, performance is on track.

50



New Performance Framework
1.9 The measures presented for quarter 3 and quarter 4 are consistent with historical 

reporting methods. They are static, retrospective measures. Since January 2019, the 
Organisational Development and Change team have been working to design a new 
Performance Framework and data display system that will enable officers to use service 
information to improve efficiency, reduced risk, identified market trends to make evidence-
based decisions and effectively plan for future service delivery.

1.10 To enable this, various BI systems have been considered. Microsoft Power BI was 
decided to be the best offer in terms of price and suitability. The system sits within the 
Microsoft 365 suite and allows easy data connections to various sources, this is an 
important requirement in a council setting because of the various computer systems the 
services use. Sample data has been inputted into Power BI and further development and 
training of the system is underway. 

1.11 A performance framework has been designed to align to the corporate strategy. 
Workshops with the five directors and senior managers have taken place to establish how 
the services are working towards the goals: Growth, Competitiveness & Agility. 
Performance measures are being identified for service outputs that correspond to the 
overarching strategic goals of the organisation.

1.12 The measures will be displayed in Power BI dashboards. Each dashboard will contain 
‘tiles’ of information in easy to view, user friendly visuals. Managers will be aware of 
current activity levels rather than obtaining a figure at the end of each month or quarter. 
This up to date information will enable service improvements decisions translating to a 
better customer experience for South Kesteven residents.

1.13 To support the workshops, demonstration dashboards have been developed covering the 
following areas: 

 Human Resources Dashboard Detailing Staff profile and sickness incidents.

 SKDC Website dashboard importing data from Google Analytics showing website 
access and usage

 Crime Dashboard detailing incidents, geography and deprivation statistics.

 Housing Services Dashboard suite

o Re-let properties

o Housing Needs & Current Void properties

o Antisocial behaviour incidents and case management

o Homelessness demographic data and case management

o Repairs

o Rent Arrears

o STAR survey results, Customer Satisfaction.

1.14 Further development work is ongoing for dashboards relating to CCTV, Community Fund 
and Building Control, Customer Services (Customer Contact), Planning Policy, Revenues 
& Benefits.

51



1.15 Due to the technical limitations of the desktop (Free) version of Power BI, these 
demonstration versions do not have full ‘Live’ capability. An initial batch of Pro licenses 
were ordered on 20 June 2019 with full live development planned for the initial dashboards 
over July and August, supported by staff training scheduled between 1 July and 2 July 
2019.

1.16 It is anticipated that by using Power BI Pro rather than Pentana, a saving of approximately 
£11,000 can be made. Alongside better use of the organisations data which can drive 
further cost efficiencies.

1.17 The examples below have been included to illustrate the difference in information 
available between the two reporting systems.

1.18 Figure 1 Shows an extract from the currently used Pentana reporting system, using data 
from Measure CP01: ‘Number of households on the council’s housing registered assessed 
as having a housing need’.

Fig. 1

1.19 This shows a very limited amount of information, only the total number of households 
within specified housing register bands.

1.20 Figure 2 shows an extract from the Housing Need demonstration dashboard.
Fig. 2

1.21 This data includes not only a breakdown of households by the different priority bands, but 
an exploration of the household’s characteristics. Further data could be added to explore 
customer preference for housing areas and bedroom need. Beyond the housing register 
data, this dashboard also includes data on the SKDC properties which are currently 

52



vacant including their location, size, build type, etc. and also includes the financial cost to 
the authority of those properties remaining vacant. 

1.22 Please note that at the time of writing this dashboard is reliant on a single fixed data set 
and is no longer accurate but serves to demonstrate the display capability of Power BI.

2 Financial Implications 
2.1 There are no specific financial comments arising from the report.  The development of the 

new performance management framework will continue to be funded from budgeted 
resources.  

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance

3 Legal and Governance Implications 
3.1 There are no legal or democratic implications arising from this report.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Head of Legal Services 

4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
4.1 There are no foreseen issues relating to equality and diversity or safeguarding resulting

from this report. Any issues that do arise relating to individual items will be addressed as

required.

5 Risk and Mitigation
5.1 The contents of this report do not expose the authority to any additional risks.

6 Community Safety Implications 
6.1 None.

7 Other Implications (where significant) 
7.1 The implementation of a new performance management framework will see the

Organisational Development and Change Team working with Officers across the

organisation to review performance. Agreement on resourcing will be made with the

relevant Assistant Director and Head of Service.

8 Background Papers
8.1 None.

9 Appendices
9.1 Appendix 1 – Performance Data Quarter 3

9.2 Appendix 2 – Performance Data Quarter 4 and final outturn for 2019/20

53



Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

N/AReport Timeline: 

Final Decision date  N/A

54



1

Quarter 3 2018/2019

October 2018 November 2018 December 2018Current 
RAG Performance Measure Description Frequency

Value Target Value Target Value Target
CP01 Number of households on 
the councils housing register 
assessed as having a housing 
need.

Months 640 600 608

CP02 Number of households living 
in temporary accommodation Quarters 33

CP05 % of Council Tax collected Months 66.46% 66.60% 75.83% 76.30% 84.87% 85.65%

CP06 % of Non-domestic Rates 
Collected Months 67.75% 67.80% 76.75% 77.10% 84.49% 86.00%

CP07 % of Rent collected Months 58.68% 59.25% 66.66% 67.2% 73.7% 72.7%

CP08 % of planning applications 
approved Months 93.52% 93.73% 93.92%

CP09 Processing of planning 
applications: Major applications Months 100.00% 60.00% 100.00% 60.00% 100.00% 60.00%

CP10 Processing of planning 
applications: Minor applications Months 88.02% 65.00% 88.84% 65.00% 89.21% 65.00%

CP11 Processing of planning 
applications: Other applications Months 86.97% 80.00% 86.28% 80.00% 86.64% 80.00%

Months 211 207 235CP12 Average time taken to 
process planning applications - 
Majors Quarters 215.4

Months 84 84 83CP13 Average time taken to 
process planning applications  - 
Non-majors Quarters 83

CP14 Occupancy rates of retail 
units in town centres Quarters 92.17% 90%

55



2

Current 
RAG Performance Measure Description Frequency

October 2018 November 2018 December 2018
Value Target Value Target Value Target

CP15 Number of vacant business 
properties Quarters 359

CP16 % of Food establishments in 
the area achieving 3 (generally 
satisfactory) or above in food 
hygiene rating scheme

Months 98.76% 97.00% 98.66% 97.00% 98.04% 97.00%

CP17 % of streets that meet clean 
streets standard Quarters 100%

CP18 Number of fly tipping 
incidents received Months 558 588 629

CP19 Number of apprenticeships 
hosted within SKDC Quarters 7 14

CP21 Percentage of household 
waste sent for reuse, recycling and 
composting (formerly NI 192)

Months 40.04% 45.00% 39.06% 45.00% 38.19% 45.00%

 CP03, CP04 and CP20 are not included above as they are completed on an annual basis rather than monthly or quarterly.

56



1

Q4 2018/2019 and final outturn for 2018/19 

January 2019 February 2019 March 2019Current 
RAG Performance Measure Description Frequency

Value Target Value Target Value Target
Months 620 610 608CP01 Number of households on 

the councils housing register 
assessed as having a housing 
need.

Years 7,901

Quarters 37CP02 Number of households living 
in temporary accommodation Years 37

CP03 CT base growth - 
Percentage growth from baseline Years 47,125.7

Half Years 110,271,261CP04 Total rateable value of 
businesses in the district Years 110,271,261

Months 94.33% 95.10% 96.66% 97.15% 98.77% 98.80%
CP05 % of Council Tax collected

Years 98.77%

Months 93.41% 94.20% 96.54% 97.25% 99.18% 98.70%CP06 % of Non-domestic Rates 
Collected Years 99.18%

Months 81.6% 82% 89.8% 90% 96.78% 98.5%
CP07 % of Rent collected 

Years 96.78%

Months 94.24% 94.12% 94.24%CP08 % of planning applications 
approved Years 94.09%

Months 100.00% 60.00% 100.00% 60.00% 97.30% 60.00%CP09 Processing of planning 
applications: Major applications Years 97.44% 60.00%

Months 89.33% 65.00% 89.40% 65.00% 88.96% 65.00%CP10 Processing of planning 
applications: Minor applications Years 89.22% 65.00%

Months 86.59% 80.00% 86.75% 80.00% 86.70% 80.00%CP11 Processing of planning 
applications: Other applications Years 86.44% 80.00%

57



2

Current 
RAG Performance Measure Description Frequency

January 2019 February 2019 March 2019
Value Target Value Target Value Target

Months 223 223 222

Quarters 222
CP12 Average time taken to 
process planning applications - 
Majors Years 222

Months 83 85 84

Quarters 84
CP13 Average time taken to 
process planning applications  - 
Non-majors Years 84

Quarters 91.83% 90%CP14 Occupancy rates of retail 
units in town centres Years 92.43% 90%

Quarters 369CP15 Number of vacant business 
properties Years 369

Months 98.23% 97.00% 98.03% 97.00% 97.81% 97.00%CP16 % of Food establishments in 
the area achieving 3 (generally 
satisfactory) or above in food 
hygiene rating scheme

Years 97.81% 97.00%

CP17 % of streets that meet clean 
streets standard Quarters 98.32%

Months 715 804 904CP18 Number of fly tipping 
incidents received Years 904

Quarters 9 14CP19 Number of apprenticeships 
hosted within SKDC Years 9 14

CP20 % of the district with 
superfast broadband coverage Years 95%

Months 41.19% 45.00% 36.92% 45.00% 36.96% 45.00%CP21 Percentage of household 
waste sent for reuse, recycling and 
composting (formerly NI 192) Years 36.96% 45.00%

 

58



Finance, Economic Development and 
Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee
16th July 2019

Report of:  Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

        

2020/21 Funding Update
This report provides Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee with an update of the 2020/21 funding position for General Fund.

Report Author

Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance

 01476 406208

 alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Gill Goddard, Senior Accountant 3 July 2019

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 3 July 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 5 July 2019

Recommendation to the decision makers

Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee is asked to: 

1. Notes the updated funding position for 2020/21

59

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update members with the medium term funding position for 

General Fund.  It covers:

 The reduction in funding from 2010/11 to date

 The Fair Funding and Business Rates Retention reviews

 The impact of the reviews on the MTFP for 2020/21

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1 This report provides members with details on the impact of the funding cuts since 2010/11 

on local government and the future of funding for local government along with the impact of 
the potential delays to both the Fair Funding and the Business Rates retention reviews.

3 Funding Challenges
3.1 Following the introduction of the austerity measures by Central Government in 2010/11 local 

government has had a real term reduction in spending power of approximately 28.6% due 
to the reduction in funding which has been received.  The following graph shows that the 
cuts for upper tier authorities have levelled off since 2016/17 but have continued for district 
councils.

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
40

50

60

70

80

90

100

District Councils Single tier and county councils

Change in Spending Power

Year

Sp
en

di
ng

 p
ow

er

3.2 The sector has responded to the funding cuts by reducing expenditure although the overall 
response can be split into two time periods, 2010/11 to 2013/14 and 2013/14 to 2016/17 as 
there has been a noticeable shift in the actions the sector during these periods to deal with 
the cuts.

Table 1 – the sector response to funding cuts

2010/11 to 
2013/14

2013/14 to 
2016/17

Change in service spend (£7.2bn) (£2.6bn)
Change in non-service spend (debt profiling 
etc)

£800m (£900m)

Change in Investment and Trading Income £100m £500m

60



3.3 Table 1 details that in the early years of the funding cuts, the sector responded by 
significantly reducing the expenditure incurred on service spend, where as in the latter 
period the focus shifted to reducing non-service spend and increasing investment and 
trading income as Councils have moved towards a more commercial focus.

3.4 There has also been an increase in the fees and charges income received across the sector 
as local authorities are offsetting the funding reductions by increasing the charges to service 
users.  There has been an increase in sales, fees and charges income of 11% from 2010/11 
to 2017/18 and this income now accounts for 29% of total spend compared with only 20% 
in 2010/11.

3.5 The following chart shows how the split of funding has changed for South Kesteven District 
Council between 2010/11 and 2018/19 and supports the increased importance of income 
from fees and charges.  The council no longer receives Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and 
is restricted on the amount of additional income that can currently be raised from Council 
Tax due to the referendum limits that are in place.  The future income to be received from 
retained business rates is uncertain due to the Business Rates Retention review.  It should 
be noted that the council piloted the 100% business rates retention scheme in 2018/19 
which resulted in additional income being received.

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

RSG Business Rates Council Tax Fees and charges

Shifting Focus on Council Funding

4 The current funding position
4.1 Central Government completed a spending review during 2015/16 which provided local 

authorities with funding information for a period of four years from 2016/17 following the 
submission and approval of an efficiency plan.  The Council was successful in securing a 
four year deal and 2019/20 is the last year of the deal. Therefore the relatively secure 
financial certainty that the four year deal provided has now elapsed and the Council is facing 
funding uncertainty from next year making medium term financial planning extremely 
challenging. 

4.2 No funding information has been released for 2020/21 onwards as the Government 
announced in 2017/18 that a fair funding review would take place.  The overriding objective 
being to fundamentally replace the current complex formula driven system with a simplified, 
more transparent formula.  In addition to this review the Government announced in 2017 
that the Business Rates Retention Scheme would also be reviewed which is anticipated to 
increase the retention rate from 50% to 75%.  The Business Rates review also introduces 

61



additional as since 2013 councils have been able to retain the business rates growth but it 
is probable that this growth will be lost under a full review as funding is equalised across the 
country.

4.3 The Government launched these consultations in December 2018 for both the Fair Funding 
Review and the Business Rates Retention Review which closed in February 2019.  The Fair 
Funding Consultation focused on three areas:

 Relative need Area Cost Adjustment – the consultation proposed adjusting for 
differences in labour costs and premises costs and accessibility and remoteness to 
ensure that these reflected the impact of journey times on labour costs to account for 
additional costs associated with sparsity, density, market conditions and economies of 
scale.

 Relative Resources -  this focuses on other funding streams that Councils have access 
to and can generate additional resources from – Council Tax income, car parking income 
etc

 Transition – the consultation proposed that the starting baseline for the purposes of 
transition should be a measure of the funding available to each local authority in 2019/20

4.4 The Business Rates Retention Review focused on two broad areas:

 The right balance of risk and reward in the business rates retention system.  Local 
authorities should continue to receive the benefit of growth they achieve in their local 
areas.

 Summaries the work undertaken to develop options to mitigate volatility in income and 
address the impact of appeal losses on local authorities.

4.5 The responses to the consultation can be summarised as follows:

 In principle support for an alternative model for the distribution of business rates with a 
phased reset.  

 The continuation of a safety net threshold was supported as this would continue to 
ensure that council’s receive a minimum level of income to fund expenditure.  

 Strong support for local negotiation of tier splits but for MHCLG to also set a default split.  

 Support for criteria to be set to assess whether properties should be on a Central List 
which would remove the income volatility experienced by some councils.

4.6 Although the consultation process has been finalised the Chancellor has indicated that due 
to other political pressures the implementation of the Fair Funding and Business Rates 
Reviews could be delayed by one year.  

4.7 This potential delay provides three potential scenario’s which could be used to estimate 
funding for the 2020/21 budget setting process:

 Scenario one - One year spending review with no funding reform;

 Scenario two - One year spending review plus funding reform;

 Scenario three - Three year spending review plus funding reform.
4.8 Scenario one provides the most certainty regarding the funding for 2020/21 as there would 

be no change to the current allocation of government grants, New Homes Bonus would be 
allocated under the current system, Business Rates would continue to operate under the 
current system so the council would retain the growth achieved to date and it is probable 
that the council tax referendum limit would remain the higher of 3% or £5.  Whereas the 

62



second two scenarios provide the least amount of certainty as all of the funding allocations 
under the current system would be subject to change.

5 The Medium Term Financial Plan
5.1 The 2019/20 to 2021/22 Medium Term Financial Plan that was presented to Council in 

March 2019 assumes that the funding reviews will both be implemented in 2020/21 which 
results in a budget deficit position of £0.915m, if this is delayed by one year then it is not 
anticipated that there will be a deficit in 2020/21 but the deficit would re-emerge the following 
year.  This is shown at Table 2.

Table 2 – 2020/21 Updated Budget

Description

2020/21 - 
Indicative 
Budget 
£000

2020/21 
- 
Updated 
Budget 
£000

2021/22 - 
Indicative 
Budget 
£000

Commercial & Operations 5,567 5,567 6,014
Growth 6,466 6,466 6,493
Resources 7,098 7,098 7,399
HRA Recharge (2,513) (2,513) (2,556)
Net Cost of Services 16,618 16,618 17,350
Interest Payable & Investment Income 123 123 120
Minimum Revenue Provision 502 502 496
Depreciation (3,766) (3,766) (4,170)
Net Budget Requirement 13,477 13,477 13,796
Funding & Resources:    
Council Tax (Excluding Parishes) (7,815) (7,815) (8,170)
Revenue Support Grant 98 98 0
Retained Business Rates (4,132) (4,962) (3,974)
New Homes Bonus (1,576) (1,756) (1,490)
Total Funding (13,425) (14,435) (13,634)
Total Transfer to Reserves 863 863 1,016
NET BUDGET DEFICIT/(SURPLUS) 915 (95) 1,178

5.2 Table 2 currently only shows indicative budgets for 2020/21 which will be reviewed and 
updated once the budget setting gets underway in the coming weeks. Therefore it is 
anticipated that the budgetary information shown in the table will change.  It should be noted 
that the spending review is not expected to be delayed by more than one year so it is 
important that the focus remains on the ambitions set out in the Corporate Strategy in order 
to ensure that a balanced position is achieved over the medium term.

6 Reasons for the Recommendation
6.1 In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee, the report is presented for 

members consideration.

7 Financial Implications 
7.1 These are included in the report

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance

63



8 Legal and Governance Implications 
8.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Interim Head of Legal

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
9.1 Not applicable

10 Risk and Mitigation
10.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks have been 

identified.

11 Community Safety Implications 
11.1 Not applicable

12 Other Implications (where significant) 
12.1 Not applicable

13 Background Papers
13.1 None

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

N/aReport Timeline: 

Final Decision date  N/a

64



Draft Work Programme Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 2019/20

Meeting Date Item Notes Outputs Cabinet Member 
and Officer

Target decision 
date

16 July 2019 2018/19 outturn and 
performance

Outturn considered by 
Governance and Audit on 21 
June 2019 and Cabinet on 9 
July 2019

Recommendations as 
necessary to Cabinet

Councillor A Stokes
Richard Wyles

N/A

Contract tendering process 
review

Item arising from call-in 
meeting on 14 June 2019

Recommendations to 
Governance and Audit 
Committee

Councillor A Stokes
Richard Wyles

N/A

Committee’s remit Committee to review its 
terms of reference and 
consider items it would like 
to see included

Recommendations to 
Constitution Committee

Council

5 September 
2019

Q1 financials and performance Quarterly reporting Recommendations as 
necessary to Cabinet

N/A

Local Plan post-examination Recommendations to 
Cabinet and Council

Councillor Robins
Paul Thomas

Cabinet – Sept 
2019
Council – Jan 
2020

Housing delivery How far behind the Council 
is in its housing delivery, 
reasons for this and 
understanding lessons about 
why the council has not 
achieved the housing 
delivery target

Recommendations as 
necessary to Cabinet

Councillor Robins
Paul Thomas

Medium Term Financial Strategy
19 November 
2019

Q2 financials and performance Quarterly reporting Recommendations as 
necessary to Cabinet

Councillor A Stokes
Richard Wyles

N/A

Economic Development Strategy 
and role of InvestSK

Recommendations as 
necessary to Cabinet, 
further work to develop an 

Councillor Goral N/A

65

A
genda Item

 12



Draft Work Programme Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 2019/20

updated Economic 
Development Strategy

Town Centre review update Continuing work begun by 
the disbanded overview and 
scrutiny committees

Car parking Councillor Goral
4 February 
2020

Development infrastructure

Customer Feedback Councillor Cooke
Lee Sirdifield

Transformation including IT and 
infrastructure

Councillor Dr. 
Moseley
Lee Sirdifield

21 April 2020 Outputs and returns arising from 
the Council’s companies
Medium Term Financial Strategy Councillor Stokes

Richard Wyles66


	Agenda
	5 Action notes of the meetings held on 4 June and 14 June 2019
	Minutes , 14/06/2019 Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee

	7 2018/19 outturn
	Outturn report appendix 18-19 Final

	8 Performance Reporting
	Q3 2018 2019
	Q4 and final  outturn for 2018 2019

	9 Funding Update
	12 Work programme

